
1 
 

OAK PARK MUNICIPAL ADVISORY COUNCIL AGENDA         April 25, 2024
  

  

 

REGULAR 

MEETING 

Agenda 

 
 

 

April 25, 2024 

 7:00 PM 

 

Municipal Advisory Council 

Oak Park, California 

 

Oak Park High School 

Room G-9 

899 North Kanan Road 

Oak Park, CA 91377 

 

 

 

Welcome to the meeting of the Oak Park Municipal Advisory Council (MAC) an advisory council 

for the unincorporated area of Oak Park to Ventura County Supervisor Jeff Gorell. 

JEFF GORELL 

Supervisor, 2nd District 

DALE THOMAS 

Field Representative 

Supervisor Jeff Gorell 

MEMBERS  

OF THE BOARD 

- J.L. DIAZ, CHAIR 

- BRIAN TRUSHINSKI, VICE CHAIR 

- MICHELLE SANTUCCI 

- JANE NYE 

- SEEMA CHANDRA 

 

WEB ACCESS 

At: ventura.org/oakparkmac 

MAC Calendar, Agenda, and Minutes 

 

https://ventura.org/oakparkmac


2 
 

OAK PARK MUNICIPAL ADVISORY COUNCIL AGENDA         April 25, 2024
  

LEGAL NOTICES 

Persons who require accommodation for any audio, visual, language, or other disability 

to review an agenda or to participate in a meeting of the Oak Park Municipal Advisory 

Council per the American Disabilities Act (ADA), may obtain assistance by requesting 

such accommodation by calling (805) 214-2510 or e-mailing dale.thomas@ventura.org. 

Any such request for accommodation should be made at least 48 hours prior to the 

scheduled meeting for which assistance is requested. 

All agenda reports and supporting data, including those filed in accordance with 

Government Code Section 54957.5 (b) (1) and (2) are available from Ventura County 

Supervisor Jeff Gorell’s office at 2100 E Thousand Oaks Blvd, Suite E, Thousand Oaks, 

CA 91362.  The same materials will be available and attached with each associated 

agenda item, when received, at the following website: ventura.org/oakparkmac  

 

Documents including staff materials, comment emails and letters, photos, etc., 

distributed to the Oak Park Municipal Advisory Council regarding any agenda item 

during an open session or after the meeting concluded, are posted online and made 

available for public inspection at ventura.org/oakparkmac  

PUBLIC COMMENT 

Public comment is the opportunity for members of the public to participate in meetings 

by addressing the Oak Park Municipal Advisory Council in connection with one or more 

agenda or non-agenda items. Public comments by a member of the public at a single 

meeting are limited to a cumulative total of five minutes at such meeting unless the time 

allotment is increased or decreased by the Chair depending on the number of speakers. 

The public comment period during the opening part of the meeting to address non-

agenda items is limited to 30 minutes total for all speakers; this 30-minute limit does not 

apply to items on the agenda. 

 

To maintain a public meeting environment conductive and welcoming to receiving public 

comments from all members of the public, the audience is discouraged from engaging 

in displays of support or opposition to staff reports or public comments, including 

clapping, yelling, booing, hissing or cheering, that may create a disruptive environment 

for members of the public wishing to participate. Any person who disrupts or impedes 

the orderly conduct of a meeting will be instructed to cease the disruptive conduct. 

Failure to do so may result in that person being removed from the meeting. 

 

Members of the public who would like to augment their comments with visual or audio 

presentations must submit their materials to the dale.thomas@ventura.org for review at 

least 48 hours before the meeting. The review will be conducted to determine only 

whether the materials are on matters within the jurisdiction of the Municipal Advisory 

Council, would be disruptive of the meeting, or would foster illegality, such as identity 

mailto:dale.thomas@ventura.org
https://www.ventura.org/oakparkmac
https://www.ventura.org/oakparkmac
mailto:dale.thomas@ventura.org


3 
 

OAK PARK MUNICIPAL ADVISORY COUNCIL AGENDA         April 25, 2024
  

theft. If it is determined that materials are about matters not within the Municipal 

Advisory Council’s jurisdiction, or would be disruptive of the meeting, or would foster 

illegality, use of County-provided equipment will not be allowed. 

Email or Mail Public Comment in Advance of the Meeting 

If you wish to make a comment on a specific agenda item by email or mail, please 
submit your comment by 12:00 p.m. on the day prior to the meeting. Indicate in the 
Subject Line the Agenda item number (e.g., Item No. 9) on which you are commenting. 
Your email or written comment will be distributed to the Municipal Advisory Council and 
placed into the item’s record for the minutes of the meeting. Public Comments 
submitted in writing are public records and subject to disclosure.  An unredacted version 
is made available when records are requested by a Public Records Act request. Please 
do not submit personal contact information you do not want to be made public. Please 
submit your comment to dale.thomas@ventura.org or mail to: 

Oak Park Municipal Advisory Council 
Ventura County Supervisor Jeff Gorell 
2100 E Thousand Oaks Blvd Suite E 

Thousand Oaks, CA 91362 

In-Person Public Comment 

If you would like to provide a verbal comment in person during the meeting, upon arrival 
at the meeting location, check in with staff and complete a comment card. When your 
name is called for public comment, please proceed to the podium. If you do not wish to 
pre-register but would like to provide in-person comments at the meeting, you must check 
in with the staff prior to the agenda item being called. 

OPENING 

1. Call to Order – Chair JL Diaz 

 

2. Roll Call 

 

3. Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag of the United States of America  

 

4. Approval of the Minutes of the meeting of the Oak Park Municipal Advisory Council 

held on Thursday, March 28, 2024 

 

5. Agenda Review 

 

6. Consent Items 11-12. 

 

7. Public Comments- Citizen Presentations regarding Oak Park Municipal Advisory 

Council related matters NOT appearing on this agenda. (See Guidelines above). 

mailto:dale.thomas@ventura.org


4 
 

OAK PARK MUNICIPAL ADVISORY COUNCIL AGENDA         April 25, 2024
  

 

8. Comments by Representative of Supervisor Jeff Gorell. 

 

9. Written Comments – Chair to read written comments received by the MAC prior to 

the meeting. 

 

10. Council Comments –Comments by Council members on matters they deem   

appropriate.  A Council member may ask a question for clarification, make a brief 

announcement, or make a brief report on his or her own activities. A council member 

may also provide a reference to staff or other resources for factual information, or 

request staff to report back to the body at a subsequent meeting concerning any 

matter.  The Council may also direct staff to place a matter of business on a future 

agenda. 

 

CONSENT AGENDA 

Consent Agenda items are routine and non-controversial. Items are reviewed and 

approved together by the Council as recommended and without discussion unless an 

item is pulled for separate action by the Board on the Regular Agenda. Consent items 

are heard at the Council’s discretion and may be heard at any time during the meeting. 

 

11. Public Works Website Activities Report 

In the month of March, seven requests for service were submitted using the  

Public Works App or Website. Three of the requests were for road maintenance, two 

reports were for weed or tree growth issues and two reports were general comments 

and concerns.  

12. Update on the Ventura County Public Works Cleanup of Medea Creek 

Concerns have been received about the cleanup activities within Medea Creek. 

Accordingly, the new Interim Ventura County Public Works Director is auditing all of the 

permits for the Medea Creek area. Additionally, they will look at feedback received from 

the community on areas of concern. Before the next MAC meeting, these actions will be 

complete and a site visit with Supervisor Gorell will occur. A report back will be provided 

to the community at the next MAC meeting. 

 

REGULAR AGENDA 

 

Regular Agenda items are heard at the Council’s discretion and may be heard at 

any time during the meeting. 

 



5 
 

OAK PARK MUNICIPAL ADVISORY COUNCIL AGENDA         April 25, 2024
  

13. California Highway Patrol (CHP) 

In person Report provided by Officer Ryan Ayers 

 

14. Ventura County Fire Department 

See enclosed report. 

In person report provided by Chief Hector Garcia  

 

15. Ventura County Sheriff  

In person report provided by Detective Tim Behrend. 

Note:  Past reports have been limited to property incidents as opposed to all 

crime due to miscommunication.  This has been resolved and future reports 

will be more inclusive. 

 

16. Ventura County Library  

The Ventura County Library’s Summer Reading Program will run from May 

15th to August 4th. The grand prize for each of our 12 locations will be a pack 

of 4 tickets to Disneyland. On Sunday, June 2nd at 1 p.m., join us as we 

welcome Saving Wildlife International for a demonstration with live animals.  

 

Our Youth Services Librarian will be working with our Branch Manager to visit 

schools within the Oak Park District to let the community know about our 

upcoming programs, including a weekly STEAM activity for elementary school 

children, an adult crafting program on Monday nights at 6 p.m., and our 

popular chess club for teens on Wednesday at 4 p.m.  

 

(Report provided by Tim Furgel, County Librarian, East Region) 

 

17. County Service Area (CSA) 4 Budget Advisement 

In accordance with the governing resolution for the Oak Park MAC, the MAC and 

the community will provide advisement to the Supervisor on desired changes to 

the budget including a review of all services provided. A PowerPoint presentation 

will be reviewed highlighting the financial status of the CSA, CSA reserve fund 

status, utilities financial break out for water & power, LED lighting savings, 

recommendations for license plate readers as well as cost, and an update on the 

landscaper RFP.  

 

18. Rancho Simi Recreation & Parks District – Oak Park – Areas of Opportunity 

Continued discussion from the last meeting allowing the community to discuss 

areas of opportunity for improvement within Oak Park. Led by Brian Trushinski 

 

19. Oak Park MAC Legislative Committee Updates 

Training for the Oak Park Legislative Committee took place on April 10th. The 

committee had an opportunity to provide suggestions to Supervisor Gorell for the 



6 
 

OAK PARK MUNICIPAL ADVISORY COUNCIL AGENDA         April 25, 2024
  

April 23rd Board of Supervisors Meeting. The Committee provided a 

recommendation to Supervisor Gorell on item 33 of the Agenda to ensure that 

the Public Works Agency and the eventual selected contractor allow an 

opportunity for the Oak Park MAC to participate in the Vision Zero Plan for the 

County Unincorporated Areas. 

RECOMMENDATION TO RECEIVE AND FILE  

      

20. Update on Rancho Simi Recreation & Parks District (RSRPD)_Pickleball 

Improvements to Deerhill Park 

Plans have been submitted by RSRPD that include the installation of a sound 

baffle, change of entrance location for the courts, new fencing, and landscaping. 

RECOMMENDATION TO RECEIVE AND FILE  

21. Calleaguas & Triunfo Water & Sanitation District Project Signage 

Due to immense requests for project end date and status, Supervisor Gorell’s 

office requested that signage be created and placed around the project that 

indicates when the project is contemplated to be completed. A copy of the design 

of the banner is attached. 

RECOMMENDATION TO RECEIVE AND FILE  

 

22. Updates to the Resolution & Area Map for the Oak Park Municipal Advisory 

Council & Creation of Municipal Advisory Council Policies 

The Oak Park MAC Area Map did not include the totality of Oak Park areas 

including undeveloped property. Accordingly, we have updated the Oak Park 

MAC area map along with the resolution governing the MAC. Additionally, in an 

effort to improve operation of MACs, the need for clearly defined roles, 

responsibilities, processes and procedures has been made apparent. 

Accordingly, a Municipal Advisory Councils Policies document has been created. 

   

CLOSING 

 

23. Adjournment of the Oak Park Municipal Advisory Council meeting to the next 

meeting on May 30, 2024 at Oak Park High School, Room G-9, 899 North Kanan 

Road, Oak Park, CA 91377. 

 



1 
 

OAK PARK MUNICIPAL ADVISORY COUNCIL MINUTES       March 28, 2024
  

 

 

 

REGULAR 

MEETING 

Minutes 

 

March 28, 2024  

 7:00 PM 

 

Municipal Advisory Council 

Oak Park, California 

 

Oak Park High School 

Room G-9 

899 North Kanan Road 
[Title] 

 

 

Welcome to the meeting of the Oak Park Municipal Advisory Council (MAC) an advisory council 

for the unincorporated area of Oak Park to Ventura County Supervisor Jeff Gorell. 

 

JEFF GORELL 

Supervisor, 2nd District 

DALE THOMAS 

Field Representative 

Supervisor Jeff Gorell 

MEMBERS  

OF THE BOARD 

- JANE NYE, CHAIR 

- SEEMA CHANDRA, VICE 

CHAIR 

- MICHELLE SANTUCCI 

- JL DIAZ 

- BRIAN TRUSHINSKI 

WEB ACCESS 

At: ventura.org/oakparkmac 

MAC Calendar, Agenda, and Minutes 

 

https://ventura.org/oakparkmac


2 
 

OAK PARK MUNICIPAL ADVISORY COUNCIL MINUTES       March 28, 2024
  

LEGAL NOTICES 

Persons who require accommodation for any audio, visual, language, or other disability 

to review an agenda or to participate in a meeting of the Oak Park Municipal Advisory 

Council per the American Disabilities Act (ADA), may obtain assistance by requesting 

such accommodation by calling (805) 214-2510 or e-mailing dale.thomas@ventura.org. 

Any such request for accommodation should be made at least 48 hours prior to the 

scheduled meeting for which assistance is requested. 

All agenda reports and supporting data, including those filed in accordance with 

Government Code Section 54957.5 (b) (1) and (2) are available from Ventura County 

Supervisor Jeff Gorell’s office at 2100 E Thousand Oaks Blvd, Suite E, Thousand Oaks, 

CA 91362.  The same materials will be available and attached with each associated 

agenda item, when received, at the following website: ventura.org/oakparkmac  

 

Documents including staff materials, comment emails and letters, photos, etc., 

distributed to the Oak Park Municipal Advisory Council regarding any agenda item 

during an open session or after the meeting concluded, are posted online and made 

available for public inspection at ventura.org/oakparkmac  

PUBLIC COMMENT 

Public comment is the opportunity for members of the public to participate in meetings 

by addressing the Oak Park Municipal Advisory Council in connection with one or more 

agenda or non-agenda items. Public comments by a member of the public at a single 

meeting are limited to a cumulative total of five minutes at such meeting unless the time 

allotment is increased or decreased by the Chair depending on the number of speakers. 

The public comment period during the opening part of the meeting to address non-

agenda items is limited to 30 minutes total for all speakers; this 30-minute limit does not 

apply to items on the agenda. 

 

To maintain a public meeting environment conductive and welcoming to receiving public 

comments from all members of the public, the audience is discouraged from engaging 

in displays of support or opposition to staff reports or public comments, including 

clapping, yelling, booing, hissing or cheering, that may create a disruptive environment 

for members of the public wishing to participate. Any person who disrupts or impedes 

the orderly conduct of a meeting will be instructed to cease the disruptive conduct. 

Failure to do so may result in that person being removed from the meeting. 

 

Members of the public who would like to augment their comments with visual or audio 

presentations must submit their materials to the dale.thomas@ventura.org for review at 

least 48 hours before the meeting. The review will be conducted to determine only 

whether the materials are on matters within the jurisdiction of the Municipal Advisory 

Council, would be disruptive of the meeting, or would foster illegality, such as identity 

mailto:dale.thomas@ventura.org
https://www.ventura.org/oakparkmac
https://www.ventura.org/oakparkmac
mailto:dale.thomas@ventura.org


3 
 

OAK PARK MUNICIPAL ADVISORY COUNCIL MINUTES       March 28, 2024
  

theft. If it is determined that materials are about matters not within the Municipal 

Advisory Council’s jurisdiction, or would be disruptive of the meeting, or would foster 

illegality, use of County-provided equipment will not be allowed. 

Email or Mail Public Comment in Advance of the Meeting 

If you wish to make a comment on a specific agenda item by email or mail, please 
submit your comment by 12:00 p.m. on the day prior to the meeting. Indicate in the 
Subject Line the Agenda item number (e.g., Item No. 9) on which you are commenting. 
Your email or written comment will be distributed to the Municipal Advisory Council and 
placed into the item’s record for the minutes of the meeting. Public Comments 
submitted in writing are public records and subject to disclosure.  An unredacted version 
is made available when records are requested by a Public Records Act request. Please 
do not submit personal contact information you do not want to be made public. Please 
submit your comment to dale.thomas@ventura.org or mail to: 

Oak Park Municipal Advisory Council 
Ventura County Supervisor Jeff Gorell 
2100 E Thousand Oaks Blvd Suite E 

Thousand Oaks, CA 91362 

In-Person Public Comment 

If you would like to provide a verbal comment in person during the meeting, upon arrival 
at the meeting location, check in with staff and complete a comment card. When your 
name is called for public comment, please proceed to the podium. If you do not wish to 
pre-register but would like to provide in-person comments at the meeting, you must check 
in with the staff prior to the agenda item being called. 

OPENING 

1. Call to Order by Vice Chair Brian Trushinski at 7:01 p.m.. 

 

2. Roll Call 

Members Present: Jane Nye, Brian Trushinski, Seema Chandra, Michelle 

Santucci. Members Absent J.L. Diaz and Florence Wang 

 

3. Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag of the United States of America led by Brian 

Trushinski. 

 

4. Approval of the Minutes of the meeting of the Oak Park Meeting of February 29. 

Motion to approve the minutes by Jane Nye.  Seconded by Michelle Santucci and 

passed unanimously. 

 

mailto:dale.thomas@ventura.org


4 
 

OAK PARK MUNICIPAL ADVISORY COUNCIL MINUTES       March 28, 2024
  

5. Agenda Review. Correction to the agenda regarding the next meeting of the 

MAC to April 25. Item 18 was moved to Item 16 to allow for an earlier 

presentation from Jeff Pratt on the CSA#4 budget. Motion to approve with 

changes by Michelle Santucci.  Second by Jane Nye.  Motion passed 

unanimously. 

 

6. Consent Item 11-15 - Item #13 pulled by Michelle Santucci to be addressed in 

the Regular Agenda. Motion to Receive and File consent items without item 13 

made by Seema Chandra.  Second by Michelle Santucci.  Motion passed 

unanimously.  

 

7. Public Comments- Citizen Presentations regarding Oak Park Municipal 

Advisory Council related matters NOT appearing on this agenda. (See 

Guidelines above). 

Tim Furgel and Anne Hogya from the Ventura County and Oak Park Library 

systems introduced themselves to the MAC. The Oak Park Library is 

accepting book donations. In the future the library would like to be 

represented at each MAC meeting and will be included on the Agenda. 

Stephen Kozel spoke about volunteer opportunities with the Friends of Oak 

Park Open Space in April to water the baby oak trees.  Michelle Santucci 

asked if these were from the collected acorns last year which was confirmed. 

8. Comments by Supervisor Gorell –delayed. 

 

9. Written Comments – no written comments were read.  

 

10.  Council Comments 

Jane Nye reported on the educational activities scheduled with Triunfo Water. 

Seema Chandra – no comments 

Michelle Santucci announced that she will represent the MAC as the appointed 

Legislative Liaison with Chair JL Diaz at the Legislative Training session to be 

held by Supervisor Gorell’s office in April. 

Brian Trushinski gave his monthly report for the landscape committee.  He 

reported that he and Dale Thomas met with Enhanced Landscape and 

determined that Oak Park appears in pretty good shape with the spring colors 

planted recently. Inspection of the trail head at Churchwood being flooded was 

reported to RSRPD.  Brian reiterated that RSRPD has officially created a district 

with Oak Park and Wood Ranch.  The Oak Park Planning Committee has been 

disbanded.   

 



5 
 

OAK PARK MUNICIPAL ADVISORY COUNCIL MINUTES       March 28, 2024
  

CONSENT AGENDA 

 Consent Agenda items are routine and non-controversial. Items are reviewed 

and approved together by the Council as recommended and without 

discussion unless an item is pulled for separate action by the Board on the 

Regular Agenda. Consent items are heard at the Council’s discretion and may 

be heard at any time during the meeting. 

11. California Highway Patrol  

(Note: CHP report was not received in time to be included in the agenda packet 

and a hard copy was distributed to Council Members.) 

12.Ventura County Fire Department 

Written Update provided by Scott Thomson, Director of Communications and 

Public Affairs.  

     13. Ventura County Sheriff 

Update provided by Sgt. Natoli.   

RECOMMENDATION TO RECEIVE AND FILE 

      14. Public Works Activities report 

 RECOMMENDATION TO RECEIVE AND FILE 

      15.  Oak Park Street Paving Calendar 

 RECOMMENDATION TO RECEIVE AND FILE 

 

      REGULAR AGENDA 

 

Regular Agenda items are heard at the Council’s discretion and may be heard at 

any time during the meeting. 

16.  Budget Presentation by Jeff Pratt, Director of Public Works 

(Note- a copy of the 2024 Proposed budget was included in a new meeting 

packet and posted on the website as well as sent out to Board Members. This 

occurred following the meeting to allow for the scheduled discussion and input 

from Board members at the April meeting.) 

Director Pratt reported that there is a structural deficit since 2022 in the budget 

which will become a serious issue in the coming years.  This needs to be 

addressed by either raising revenues or cutting expenditure.  The highest costs 

were reporte4d to be landscaping and crossing guards. Brian Trushinski asked 

what the timeline is for the budget.  The fiscal year is July 1 – June 30.  The final 



6 
 

OAK PARK MUNICIPAL ADVISORY COUNCIL MINUTES       March 28, 2024
  

budget will be voted on by the Board of Supervisors in June.  Jeff Pratt indicated 

that the budget numbers are slightly inflated with “no obligation to spend but 

permission to spend” There is a $150K line items for emergencies and $210K is 

for school crossing guards.  Seema Chandra raised the point that Oak Park is the 

only district where the CSA budget pays for the crossing guards with others paid 

by the school district.  Discussion ensued that the school district budget is limited 

but that this is an issue that needs to be addressed.  Seema Chandra requested 

information related to any cost savings because of the lite changes and Michelle 

Santucci requested a breakout of water and electricity in the utilities line item. 

Brian Trushinski requested that the members of the Board review the proposed 

budget and bring their comments and “wish list” to the April MAC meeting. 

8. Supervisor Gorell’s remarks (moved from earlier in the agenda) 

Supervisor Gorell addressed the MAC late in the agenda.  He spoke of the “grey 

wave” taking place in Ventura County with the retirement of many people across 

departments.  He mentioned that more than 50% of county employees will reach 

retirement aged within the next 5 years. He thanked Jeff Pratt for his presentation 

on the last night of his position as Director of Public Works. 

13.  Consent Item #13 which had been pulled by Michelle Santucci was then 

addressed.  Michelle was not happy with the report by the VC Sheriff given that 

there were crimes in Oak Park that were reported in the Acorn that were not 

addressed by the Sheriff’s report.  She questioned where the Acorn gets it 

information. Supervisor Gorell mentioned that they probably listen to scanners. 

Michelle requested that the public safety reports be more inclusive of actual 

crimes. 

17.  Presentation by Calleguas-Las Virgenes Interconnection project. 

Power point presentation included in agenda packet.  Dale Thomas mentioned 

that the office has requested signage be located at the sites indicating when the 

projected completion date will be to address residents’ frustrations. 

18.  Oak Park Municipal Advisory Council 2024 elections. 

A resolution was voted on and unanimously passed requesting that the election 

for the two vacating positions on the Board be placed on the November 2024 

General Election ballot.  Brian Trushinski signed the Resolution. 

19.  Oak Park Meeting Calendar Update 

A request to move the October MAC meeting from October 31 to October 24 as it 

conflicts with Halloween was voted on and passed.  It was also suggested that 

the MAC meeting scheduled for November be moved to November 21, however 

further research revealed that it was already schedule for the 21st so not to 

conflict with Thanksgiving. 



7 
 

OAK PARK MUNICIPAL ADVISORY COUNCIL MINUTES       March 28, 2024
  

20.  Discussion of the impacts to the Community Due to Recent Decisions 

by RSRPD and determine next steps. 

Mark Perryman read the topic for discussion as outlined in the agenda. Some 

further discussion ensued with interest in pursuing the possibility of division 

between Oak Park and RSRPD. There is concern that without representation 

specifically for Oak Park, the community will take a back seat to Wood Ranch 

having been included with them in a district.  With no planning committee from 

Oak Park residents are concerned.  Brian Trushinski asked that serious 

consideration be given to this issue and that residents consider Why this should 

be considered.  The recent upset with residents in the Deerhill areas by the 

decision to convert tennis court to pickleball seems to be the basis for the current 

discontent.  The item was tabled until the April meeting. 

 

CLOSING 

 

21. Adjournment of the Oak Park Municipal Advisory Council meeting was 

adjourned at 8:41 p.m. to the next meeting, Thursday, April 25, 2024 at Oak Park 

High School, Room G-9, 899 North Kanan Road, Oak Park, CA 91377  



 

 

 

Dustin Gardner 

Fire Chief 

165 Durley Avenue, Camarillo, CA 93010-8586 

 

 

 

Page 1 of 1 

 Website: VCFD.org 

 Twitter: @VCFD 

 Facebook: @VenturaCountyFire 

 Instagram: @VenturaCountyFire 

 

Contact: Scott Thomsen 

                   Direcotor of Communications and Public Affairs 

                   Phone:  (805) 914-8502 

                   Email:    scott.thomsen@ventura.org 

 

April 8, 2024 

 

Attn: Supervisor Jeff Gorell and Municipal Advisory Committees 

 
 

• Annual notices for the Ventura County Fire Department’s Fire Hazard Reduction Program will be mailed 
April 19 because the regular notice date falls on a Saturday this year. Property owners in high fire 
hazard areas covered by the program have until June 1 to trim vegetation, remove dead branches, 
clear roofs and gutters and take other fire hazard reduction steps outlined by the Fire Code. 

• Following significant rain in March, Ventura County is experiencing another Spring of strong vegetation 
growth. Fire Hazard Reduction Program property owners should be prepared to trim vegetation several 
times this year. 

• The Ventura County Fire Department continues to support CalTrans and county Public Works as they 
work to clear debris from roadways closed by mudslides, including Highway 150. VCFD is working with 
county EMS to support a coverage plan for cut off areas. 

• Bids have been submitted for the construction of a new Fire Station 29. A contract is scheduled to be 
awarded April 23 and the tentative start for construction is May 21. 

 

 

Sincerely, 

Scott Thomsen 

Director of Communications and Public Affairs 

Ventura County Fire Department 



VENTURA COUNTY 

SHERIFF’S OFFICE 

M E M O R A N D U M   

DATE:   April 22, 2024 

TO:   Honorable Supervisor Jeff Gorell 

FROM:   Captain Kevin Lynch 

RE:   Proposed LPR Cameras – Oak Park 

 
Greetings Supervisor Gorell,  

Thank you for reaching out to the VCSO - East Valley Station and requesting our input in 
your proposal to equip the community of Oak Park with license plate reading cameras.  
After several discussions with my detectives, we believe the most efficient and cost-
effective plan to protect the community is to strategically place three LPR cameras in the 
areas of East bound Kanan Road, East of Falling Star, East bound Lakeview Canyon Road, 
East of Falling Star and North bound Pinewood Avenue, North of Tamarind Street.     

The Kanan Rd and Lakeview Canyon Rd camaras provide coverage for an entrance or exit 
into Oak Park through the Kanan Rd corridor from the North and West.  Under the current 
array of LPR camaras in the cities of Thousand Oaks and Agoura Hills, vehicles can access 
Oak Park via Kanan / Westlake Blvd / Erbes Rd corridor and never cross paths with a 
freeway.  The Pinewood Ave camera offers similar protection for a side road entrance into 
Oak Park off of N/B Kanan from the 101 freeway.   

Theoretically, the freeway-based camaras in the city of Agoura can and will protect Oak 
Park from LA – based crime crews that enter the County via the 101 freeway.  However, 
local criminal crews, savvy to the back roads of East County can access Oak Park via Kanan 
and never set their tires onto a freeway.  Under our plan, two cameras will need to be 
mounted within the city limits of Thousand Oaks. However, we feel very confident that we 
can obtain approval from city leaders, as these cameras will also offer protection to 
Thousand Oaks residents.    

The creation and evolution of the license plate reading camera has revolutionized law 
enforcement criminal investigations, not just in our community, but nationwide.  Since our 
adaptation of this technology, the East Valley Sheriff’s Station can boast an arrest and 
closure rate of about 35% to 40% for all residential and commercial burglaries in our 
jurisdiction, at a time when the national average for closures of these types of crimes hover 
around 12%.  This technology is that important to us.    

As always, we value our relationship with you and your staff and look forward to our 
continued partnership toward enhancing public safety. 





 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Flock Safety + County of Ventura  
______________ 

 

Flock Group Inc. 

1170 Howell Mill Rd, Suite 210 

Atlanta, GA 30318 

______________ 

 

MAIN CONTACT: 

Kyle Egkan 

kyle.egkan@flocksafety.com 

7144690389 

 

Created Date: 04/18/2024 

Expiration Date: 07/31/2024 

Quote Number: Q-79348 

PO Number:  

 

  



 

 
Budgetary Quote 

This document is for informational purposes only. Pricing is subject to change. 

 
 

Bill To: 800 South Victoria Avenue Ventura, California 93009 Ship To: 800 S Victoria Ave Ventura, California 93009 
 

Billing Company Name: County of Ventura Subscription Term: 36 Months 
Billing Contact Name: County Service Area 4 C/o Public Works Payment Terms: Net 30 
Billing Email Address:  Retention Period: 365 Days 

Billing Phone:  Billing Frequency: Annual Plan - First Year Invoiced at 
Signing.              

    

Hardware and Software Products 

Annual recurring amounts over subscription term 

 

Item Cost Quantity Total 

Flock Safety Platform   $9,900.00 

Flock Safety Flock OS    

FlockOS ™ - Essentials Included 1 Included 

Flock Safety LPR Products    

Flock Safety Falcon ® Included 3 Included 

Flock Safety Platform Add Ons    

Extended data retention (Up to 1 Year) Included 3 Included 

 

 

Professional Services and One Time Purchases 
    

Item Cost Quantity Total 

One Time Fees    

Flock Safety Professional Services    

Professional Services - Existing Infrastructure 

Implementation Fee 
$150.00 3 $450.00 

 

 

  Subtotal Year 1: $10,350.00 

  Annual Recurring Subtotal: $9,900.00 

  Estimated Tax: $0.00 

  
Contract Total: $30,150.00 

 

 
Taxes shown above are provided as an estimate. Actual taxes are the responsibility of the Customer. This is not an invoice – this document is a non-binding proposal 

for informational purposes only. Pricing is subject to change. 
 
  



Billing Schedule Amount (USD) 

Year 1  

At Contract Signing $10,350.00 

Annual Recurring after Year 1 $9,900.00 

Contract Total $30,150.00 

*Tax not included 

 

  



 

Product and Services Description 

 

Flock Safety Platform Items Product Description 

Flock Safety Falcon ® An infrastructure-free license plate reader camera that utilizes Vehicle Fingerprint® technology to capture vehicular attributes. 

 

 

One-Time Fees Service Description 

Installation on existing 
infrastructure 

One-time Professional Services engagement. Includes site & safety assessment, camera setup & testing, and shipping & handling 
in accordance with the Flock Safety Advanced Implementation Service Brief. 

Professional Services - 
Standard Implementation Fee 

One-time Professional Services engagement. Includes site and safety assessment, camera setup and testing, and shipping and 
handling in accordance with the Flock Safety Standard Implementation Service Brief. 

Professional Services - 
Advanced Implementation Fee 

One-time Professional Services engagement. Includes site & safety assessment, camera setup & testing, and shipping & handling 
in accordance with the Flock Safety Advanced Implementation Service Brief. 

 
FlockOS Features & Description 
 

FlockOS Features Description 

Community Network Access 

The ability to request direct access to feeds from privately owned Flock Safety Falcon® LPR 

cameras located in neighborhoods, schools, and businesses in your community, significantly 

increasing actionable evidence that clears cases. 

Unlimited Users Unlimited users for FlockOS 

State Network (License Plate Lookup Only) 
Allows agencies to look up license plates on all cameras opted into the Flock Safety network 

within your state. 

Nationwide Network (License Plate Lookup Only) 

With the vast Flock Safety sharing network, law enforcement agencies no longer have to rely on 

just their devices alone. Agencies can leverage a nationwide system boasting 10 billion additional 

plate reads per month to amplify the potential to collect vital evidence in otherwise dead-end 

investigations. 

Law Enforcement Network Access 
The ability to request direct access to evidence detection devices from Law Enforcement 

agencies outside of your jurisdiction. 

Time & Location Based Search Search full, partial, and temporary plates by time at particular device locations 

License Plate Lookup Look up specific license plate location history captured on Flock devices 

Vehicle Fingerprint Search 

Search footage using Vehicle Fingerprint™ technology. Access vehicle type, make, color, license 

plate state, missing / covered plates, and other unique features like bumper stickers, decals, and 

roof racks. 

Insights & Analytics 
Reporting tool to help administrators manage their LPR program with device performance data, 

user and network audits, plate read reports, hot list alert reports, event logs, and outcome reports. 

ESRI Based Map Interface 
Map-based interface that consolidates all data streams and the locations of each connected 

asset, enabling greater situational awareness and a common operating picture. 

Real-Time NCIC Alerts on Flock ALPR Cameras 

Receive automated alerts when vehicles entered into established databases for missing and 

wanted persons are detected, including the FBI’s National Crime Information Center (NCIC) and 

National Center for Missing &amp; Exploited Children (NCMEC) databases. 

Unlimited Custom Hot Lists 
Ability to add a suspect’s license plate to a custom list and get alerted when it passes by a Flock 

camera 

 



District 2 Cross MAC Legislative 
Committee Recommendations 

 

2100 E. Thousand Oaks Blvd., Suite E • Thousand Oaks, CA 91362 • TEL (805) 214-2510 • FAX (805) 480-0585 
Jeff.Gorell@ventura.org 

 
DATE:   April 22, 2024   BOS DATE:   April 23, 2024 
 

COMMITTEE MEMBERS: 
 

CASA CONEJO MAC OAK PARK MAC SANTA ROSA VALLEY MAC SOMIS MAC 

☒ Debra Hanna ☒ JL Diaz ☒ Rosemary Allison ☒ Pat Richardson 

☐ David Ayers ☒ Michelle Santucci ☒ Michael Adams ☐ Robert Fulkerson 

☒ = Please click the box to confirm your participation. 
_________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Agenda Item # MAC(s) Recommendation(s) 

#6 (Moment 
of Inspiration) 

Casa Conejo MAC– 
DH 

Agenda has a grant relating to green school initiatives. 
Encourage similar grant opportunities for District 2 
schools. Supports these kind of programs.  

#18-20 
(Consent) 

Casa Conejo MAC– 
DH 

Camarillo Airport Improvements: Will the 
improvements increase air traffic, road traffic and noise 
for our communities? Does the budget for these 
improvements include money for traffic & noise 
mitigation… 

#27 (Consent) Somis MAC - PR $6M Dollars for farm workers for 400 farm workers. 
Does any of the money go towards the Somis 
Farmworkers housing/workers? That accounts for 
$15,000 per person. Does Somis benefit this or is going 
to other districts? 

#33 (Consent) Casa Conejo MAC - 
DH 

Please include the MACs when formulating the plan.  

#33 (Consent) Oak Park MAC Support this. Traffic at our local schools should be 
looked at. Should we also reduce speed limits in high 
traffic areas (e.g. Conifer & Kanan and certain other 
residential areas). Should we have speed bumps or 
cross walks? 

#33 (Consent)  Somis MAC - PR Are they talking about safe streets which would include 
safe routes to schools? If so, can any of that money be 
spent on safe sidewalks for our school in Somis?  

#48 Volunteer 
Appreciation 
Week 

Santa Rosa Valley 
MAC 

Happy about this! Supports this agenda item.  

 



DISTRICT 2
LEGISLATIVE MAC
COMMITTEE OVERVIEW APRIL 2024



AGENDA

2

1. Overview & Purpose of the Legislative Committee

2. Board of Supervisors Overview

3. Roles & Responsibilities

4. Board of Supervisors Agenda Notifications



OVERVIEW & PURPOSE OF THE MAC 

LEGISLATIVE COMMITTEE

Upon taking office in 2023, Ventura County Supervisor Jeff Gorell wanted to ensure that each of 

the Municipal Advisory Councils in his district had an opportunity to provide recommendations to 

him as it pertains to each item on the County’s Board of Supervisors (BOS) agenda. The BOS is 

responsible for all County departments and delivering services to unincorporated areas. Per MAC 

resolutions, MACs are responsible for “providing advisory recommendations regarding planning, 

public works, public health, safety and welfare matters.” As BOS meetings are more frequent than 

MAC meetings, subcommittees made up of the MAC Chair and a MAC-appointed additional 

member are selected to discharge this official duty.

3



VENTURA COUNTY BOARD OF 

SUPERVISORS

4



DUTIES OF THE BOARD OF 

SUPERVISORS

• Serves as the legislative and executive body of Ventura County

• Sets the priorities of the County

• Oversee County departments, programs, officials, property, and more

• Adopt the County Budget and oversee the financial management of the County

• Approve and regulate land use and development

• Manage emergency services and disaster preparedness

• Address community concerns and issues

5



ABOUT VENTURA COUNTY

6

• Founded on January 1, 1873 after 

separating from Santa Barbara 

County

• Home to over 900,000 residents

• 42 miles of coastline

• Elevation: Sea-level to 8,831 feet 

at the peak of Mt. Pinos in the Los 

Padres National Forest

• 1.2 million acres



26 COUNTY AGENCIES – OVER 10,000 

EMPLOYEES

7



DISTRICT 2 – AREAS REPRESENTED 

BY JEFF GORELL 

8

• City of Thousand Oaks

• Northern & Eastern portions of the City of Camarillo

• Newbury Park

• Westlake Village

• Oak Park

• Hidden Valley

• Lake Sherwood

• Somis

• Las Posas Valley

• Camarillo Springs

• Camarillo Heights

• Casa Conejo

• Santa Rosa Valley

• Ventu Park

• South Coast



MAP OF DISTRICT 2

9



MAC LEGISLATIVE COMMITTEE 

ROLES & RESPONSIBILITIES

10

# Who What When

1 Each District 2 MAC Appoint a member to join the Chair as legislative sub committee members. Annually

2 Each Legislative Sub Committee 
Member

Sign-Up for Board of Supervisors Meeting Agenda Notifications At Beginning of MAC 
Assignment

3 Each Legislative Sub Committee 
Member

Be aware of Board of Supervisors Meeting Calendar as draft agenda is released the 
Tuesday before the meeting and final agenda is released Thursday before the 
meeting.

At Beginning of MAC 
Assignment

4 Each Legislative Sub Committee 
Member

Review the draft agenda, final agenda & any relevant agenda attachments to 
evaluate recommendations to Supervisor Gorell

Upon Agenda Distribution

5 Supervisor’s Scheduler Distribute a document where final MAC Liaison feedback can be inserted Friday before Board of 
Supervisors Meeting

6 Each Legislative Sub Committee 
Member

Provide recommendations on BOS agenda items in the document provided. Before Monday Review 
Meeting

7 Each Legislative Sub Committee 
Member

Join meeting with your Supervisor’s Office MAC Liaison to review your 
recommendations that have been submitted into the document.

Monday before Board of 
Supervisors Meeting

8 Each Legislative Sub Committee 
Member, MAC Liaison, Supervisor

Review recommendations received across all MAC’s with County Supervisor. MAC 
Chair presents their areas of recommendations to the Supervisor.

Monday afternoon before 
Board of Supervisors Meeting

9 Sub Committee Members Present their recommendations and updates of the committee. At MAC Meeting

https://www.ventura.org/board-of-supervisors/agendas-notifications/
https://www.ventura.org/board-of-supervisors/agendas-documents-and-broadcasts/


MAC LEGISLATIVE COMMITTEE 

SCOPE EVALUATION

11



MAC LEGISLATIVE COMMITTEE 

EXAMPLE TIMELINE

12



MAC LEGISLATIVE COMMITTEE 

BOS AGENDA SIGN-UP

13

https://www.ventura.org/board-of-supervisors/agendas-notifications/


THANK YOU!

14



 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
Date:  April 22, 2024 
 
To: Office of Supervisor Gorell, District. No. 2 
 
From:  Kristina Boero, Senior Planner 

Residential Permits Section  
Ventura County Planning Division 

 
Subject: Conditional Use Permit No. 4067, as augmented by Minor Modification 

No. PL13-0163 
Permit Adjustment Case No. PL24-0051 
6500 Doubletree Drive, Oak Park 
Assessor’s Parcel Numbers 801-0-040-145 & 801-0-040-065 

 

 
Attached please find the following information regarding a recently submitted application 
for a project located in your district: 
 

• Project Description 

• Plans 

• Location Map 
 
Project Description: The Rancho Simi Park and Recreation District requests that a 
Permit Adjustment be granted for the conversion of the existing two tennis courts at 
Deerhill Park into six pickleball courts. A sound baffle will be installed on the inside of all 
fence panels of the entire court. The entrance to the courts will be relocated to the south 
side. New fencing (12 feet in height) around the courts and landscaping is also 
proposed. Existing lighting will remain, and double and single pole mounted light fixtures 
will be installed in the center of the court. 
 
Note: On February 29, 2024, the Oak Park Municipal Advisory Council reviewed the 
proposed project, and voted unanimously to support the applicant’s request to convert 
the tennis courts to pickleball courts.  
 
If you have any questions, or would like additional information regarding the project, 
please contact me at (805) 654-2467 or kristina.boero@ventura.org. 
 

New Project in District 
County of Ventura • Resource Management Agency • Planning Division 

800 S. Victoria Avenue, Ventura, CA 93009-1740 • (805) 654-2478 • vcrma.org/divisions/planning  

 

mailto:kristina.boero@ventura.org


PL24-0051 
New Project in District 

Page 2 of 2 

 

 



2

B

1 3 4 5 6

1 32 4 5 6

A

C

D

E

SHEET NUMBER

DATE: SHEET: OF:

PROJECT TITLE

DRAWN :

PROJECT NO. CHECKED: 

SCALE :

SHEET TITLE:

STAMPS/SEALS

D
EE

R
H

IL
L 

PA
R

K 
- P

IC
KL

EB
AL

L 
C

O
U

R
T 

C
O

N
VE

R
SI

O
N

 P
R

O
JE

C
T

DEERHILL PARK
PICKLEBALL COURT

CONVERSTION PROJECT

6700 DOUBLETREE RD.
OAK PARK, CA. 91377

REVISIONS:

DEERHILL PARK
PICKLEBALL COURT

CONVERSION PROJECT

W.N.

J.S. --

L-0.1
04/18/2024 1 8

KEY PLANVICINITY MAP SHEET INDEX

DEERHILL PARK
PICKLEBALL COURTS

CONVERSION PROJECT

6700 DOUBLETREE ROAD
OAK PARK, CA. 91377

100% CD

DESIGN INTENT: THESE DRAWINGS AND ACCOMPANYING TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS REPRESENT THE
GENERAL DESIGN INTENT TO BE IMPLEMENTED ON THE SITE. CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR
CONTACTING THE PARK DISTRICT REPRESENTATIVE FOR ANY ADDITIONAL CLARIFICATION OR DETAILS
NECESSARY TO ACCOMMODATE SITE CONDITIONS.

CONTRACTOR COORDINATION: THE CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE AND OTHERWISE INTEGRATE HIS WORK
WITH THAT OF OTHERS IN AN EFFICIENT, CRAFTSMANLIKE AND TIMELY MANNER SO AS TO PROVIDE THE PARK
DISTRICT WITH A WELL-CONSTRUCTED, EASILY MAINTAINABLE PROJECT.

COMPOSITE BASE INFORMATION: THE DESIGN OF THIS PROJECT WAS BASED ON PLAN DATA THAT HAS BEEN
COMPILED USING THE BEST INFORMATION AVAILABLE FROM MULTIPLE SOURCES INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED
TO; TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY, GIS, GPS, SATELLITE IMAGERY, AERIAL PHOTOGRAPHY, AND IN-FIELD SURVEY.
SIZE AND LOCATION OF EXISTING FEATURES SHOWN ON THESE DOCUMENTS ARE FOR CONTRACTOR'S
CONVENIENCE ONLY. THE CONTRACTOR WILL BE  RESPONSIBLE TO VERIFY BY FIELD MEASUREMENT THE SIZE
AND LOCATION OF ALL FEATURES. THE DISTRICT WILL NOT BE HELD RESPONSIBLE FOR DISCREPANCIES
BETWEEN THE PLAN AND ACTUAL FIELD CONDITIONS. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL INFORM THE DISTRICT OF ANY
DISCREPANCIES BETWEEN FIELD CONDITIONS AND PLANS PRIOR TO PROCEEDING WITH WORK.  ALL FIELD
ADJUSTMENTS MUST BE APPROVED BY THE PARK DISTRICT REPRESENTATIVE PRIOR TO INSTALLATION.

UTILITIES & UNDERGROUND INFRASTRUCTURE: A REASONABLE EFFORT HAS BEEN MADE TO LOCATE AND
DELINEATE ALL KNOW UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AND INFRASTRUCTURE. THE CONTRACTOR IS CAUTIONED
THAT ONLY EXCAVATION WILL REVEAL THE TYPES, EXTENT, SIZES, LOCATION, AND DEPTHS OF SUCH
UNDERGROUND OBJECTS. HOWEVER, THE PARK DISTRICT CAN ASSUME NO RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
COMPLETENESS OR ACCURACY OF DELINEATION OF SUCH UNDERGROUND OBJECTS, NOR FOR THE
EXISTENCE OF OTHER BURIED UTILITIES OR OBJECTS WHICH ARE NOT SHOWN ON THESE DRAWINGS. THE
CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR CONTACTING THE UTILITY COMPANIES INVOLVED, PRIOR TO COMMENCING
CONSTRUCTION, AND REQUESTING A VISUAL VERIFICATION OF LOCATIONS OF UNDERGROUND FACILITIES.
UTILITY COMPANIES ARE MEMBERS OF UNDERGROUND SERVICE ALERT OF SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA (USA/SC)
OR DIGALERT ONE-CALL PROGRAM. NOTIFICATION SHALL BE 48 HOURS IN ADVANCE OF PERFORMING
EXCAVATION WORK BY CALLING 811 AND SETTING UP SERVICES. EXCAVATION IS DEFINED AS BEING 6 OR
MORE INCHES IN DEPTH BELOW THE EXISTING SURFACE.

THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR DAMAGE TO ANY UTILITY CAUSED BY CONSTURCTION
ACTIVITIES. SHOULD ANY DAMAGES OCCUR, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY THE DISTRICT REPRESENTATIVE
AND THE UTILITY OWNER IMMEDIATELY.

THE PARK SHALL REMAIN OPEN DURING THE CONSTRUCTION PERIOD. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE
RESPONSIBLE FOR TAKING PROPER PRECAUTIONS AND MAINTAINING THE SAFETY OF PARK PATRONS. THE
CONTRACTOR SHALL ALSO CONTROL MOVEMENT AND ACCESS THROUGHOUT THE PARK SITE FOR ALL PARTIES
DURING CONSTRUCTION.

THE CONTRACTOR SHALL ONLY BE PERMITTED TO WORK MONDAY THROUGH FRIDAY, DURING THE HOURS OF
7AM UNTIL 5PM. CONTRACTOR SHALL NOT START ANY EQUIPMENT BEFORE 7AM.

THE CONTRACTOR SHALL CLEANUP AND REMOVE ALL CONSTRUCTION DEBRIS AND LOOSE MATERIAL FROM
THE CONSTRUCTION SITE AND ADJACENT AREAS AT THE CLOSE OF EACH DAY. THIS WORK SHALL BE INCLUDED
IN THE COST OF THE CONTRACT AND NO ADDITIONAL PAYMENT SHALL BE MADE BY THE DISTRICT.

THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY REPAIRS OR RESTORATION TO ITEMS DAMAGED BY
CONSTRUCTION OR CONSTRUCTION EQUIPMENT AT NO ADDITIONAL COST TO THE DISTRICT. THE DAMAGED
AREAS SHALL BE RESTORED TO THE SATISFACTION OF THE DISTRICT REPRESENTATIVE. ALL RESTORATION
WORK SHALL BE INCLUDED IN THE COST OF THE CONTRACT.

ONLY VEHICLES RELATED TO THE CONSTRUCTION OF THE PROJECT SHALL BE PERMITTED WITHIN THE PARK
SITE. NO PERSONAL VEHICLES SHALL BE STAGED WITHIN THE PARK.

CONTRACTOR IS PERMITTED TO USE THE PARK RESTROOMS THROUGHOUT THE COURSE OF CONSTRUCTION,
HOWEVER, CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE TO KEEP THE FACILITY CLEAN AND CLEAR OF ANY TRACKED
IN MUD AND/OR DEBRIS BY HIS/HER EMPLOYEES, ASSOCIATES, OR SUB-CONTRACTORS. DO NOT USE
RESTROOMS TO WASH EQUIPMENT OR FOR ANY CONSTRUCTION RELATED ACTIVITIES.

GENERAL NOTES ABBREVIATIONS

FR
O

N
T 

SH
EE

T

SHEET

L-2.1

L-0.1

L-1.1

SHEET TITLE

DEMOLITION PLANS

FRONT SHEET

SITE PLAN (EXISTING CONDITIONS)

REFERENCE

N

L-3.1 CONSTRUCTION PLAN

# Number
& And
@ At
AB Aggregate Base
ABM Air Blown Mortar
AC Asphalt Concrete
A/C Air Conditioner
ACP Asbestos Cement Pipe
AD Area Drain
ADD Addition
ADJ Adjust
AFF Above Finished Floor
AFG Above Finished Grade
ALT Alternate
ALUM Aluminum
APPROX Approximate
ASPH Asphalt
ARCH Architectural

BC Begin Curve
BCR Begin Curb Return
BF Blind Flange
BFP Backflow Preventer
BK Back
BLDG Building
BLVD Boulevard
BOC Bottom of Curb
BOP Bottom of Pipe
BOTT Bottom
BOW Bottom of Wall
BS Bottom of Step

CAB Crushed Aggregate Base
CAD Computer Aided Drafting
CB Catch Basin
CBC CA. Building Code
CD Construction Document
CF Curb Face
CI Cast Iron
CIP Cast In Place
CJ Control Joint
CL, ℄ Centerline
CLG Ceiling
CLR Clearance
CM Centimeter
CMP Corrugated Metal Pipe
CMU Concrete Masonry Unit
CNTRL Control
COL Column
CONC Concrete
CONST Construction
CONT Continuous
CO Cleanout
COORD Coordinate
CORR Corridor
CPL Coupling
CSP Corrugated Steel Pipe
CW Cold Water
CY Cubic Yard

D Drain
DB Distribution Box
DBL Double
DEG Degree
DEMO Demolition
DET Detail
DEV Deviation
DD Design Development
DG Decomposed Granite
DIA, Ø Diameter
DIM(S) Dimension(s)
DIP Ductile Iron Pipe
DN Down
DWG Drawing
DWL Dowel

E East or Electrical
(E), EXIST Existing
EA Each
EB Electrical Box
EC End Curve
ECR End of Curb Return
EG Existing Grade
EIR Environmental Impact 

Report
EJ Expansion Joint
EL Elevation
EP Edge of Paving
EL, ELEV Elevation
ELEC Electrical
EQ Equal
EQT Equipment
EQUIV Equivalent
ES Each Side
EV Electrical Vault
EW Each Way
EXP Exposed
EXT Exterior

FAB Fabricated

FASL Feet Above Sea Level
FD Floor Drain
FDC Fire Depart. Connection
FE Flanged End
FFE Finished Floor Elevation
FG Finished Grade
FH Fire Hydrant or Flat Head
FIG Figure
FIXT Fixture
FL Flow Line
FLR Floor
FOB Face of Building
FOC Face of Curb
FPS Feet Per Second
FRP Fiberglass Reinforced 

Plastic
FS Finish Surface
FSF Finish Surface Field
FT Foot
FV Flow Valve
FW Fire Water Service

G Gas
GA Gauge
GALV Galvanized
GB Grade Break
GI Galvanized Iron
GIS Geographic Information 

System
GM Gas Meter
GPM Gallons Per Minute
GP Guide Pole
GPS Global Positioning System
GW Guy-Wire

HB Hose Bib
HDG Hot Dipped Galvanized
HDR Header
HH Handhole
HORIZ Horizontal
HP High Point
HPI Horizontal Point of 

Intersection
HR Hour
HSS Hallow Structural Steel
HW Hot Water

ICV Irrigation Control Valve
ID Inside Diameter
INSUL Insulated or 

Insulation
INT Interior
INV Invert
IRR Irrigation Line

JBOX Junction Box

KO Knock Out

LAV Lavatory
LB/LBS Pound/Pounds
LF Linear Feet
LN Lane
LOW Limit of Work
LP Low Point

MAX Maximum
MECH Mechanical
MED Medium
MFR Manufacturer
MH Manhole
MIN Minimum
MJ Mechanical Joint
MM Millimeter
MTD Mounted
MTL Metal
MUTCO Manual on Uniform Traffic 

Control Devices

N North
(N) New
NIC Not In Contract
NO Number
NOM Nominal
NPW Non Potable Water
NTS Not to Scale

OC On Center
OD Outside Diameter
OF Over Flow
OPP Opposite
OZ Ounce

P, PG Page Number
PA Plant Area
PB Pull Box
PC Point of Curvature
PCC Pre-Cast Concrete
PE Polyethylene
PERF Perforated

PERM Permanent
PI Point of Intersection
PL Property Line
POC Point of Connection
POS Point on Slope
PNT Point
PREFAB Prefabricated
PROP Proposed
PSI Pounds Per Square Inch
PT Pressure Treated
PVC Polyvinyl Chloride
PVMT Pavement
PWR Power

QTY Quantity

R, RAD Radius
RC Reinforced Concrete
RCB Reinforced Concrete Box
RCV Remote Control Valve
RD Road
REBAR Reinforcement Bar
REF Reference
REL Relocated
REQ'D Required
RIM Rim Elevation
RM Room
RND Round
RR Railroad
R/W Right of Way
RWL Rain Water Leader

S South
S4S Surface Four Sides
SCE Southern California 

Edison
SCH Schedule
SD Storm Drain
SF, SQ. FT. Square Foot
SHT Sheet
SIM Similar
SMH Sewer Manhole
SPEC(S) Specification(s)
SQ Square
SS Sanitary Sewer
SST Stainless Steel
ST Street
STA Station
STL Steel
SWR Sewer
SY Square Yard
SYN Synthetic

T Telephone
TB Traffic Box
TOC Top of Curb
TEMP Temporary
THK Thick
TME To Match Existing
TOS Top of Step
TYP Typical
TOW Top of Wall
TP Telephone Pole

UG, U/G Underground
UON Unless Otherwise Noted

VAR Varies
VC Vertical Curve
VERT Vertical
VIF Verify in Field

W Water or West
WF Wide Flange
WM Water Meter or Waste 

Management
WP Weakened-Plane Joint
WS Water Surface
WSP Welded Steel Pipe
WV Water Valve
WVB Water Valve Box
WWM Welded Wire Mesh
W/ With
W.A. Work Order
W/O Without
WD Wood

XREF External Reference

YD Yard

Deerhill Park
Pickleball Courts

Deerhill Park

D
eerhill R

d.

Doubletree Rd.

Deerbrook Rd.

L-3.2 SURFACING, SIGNAGE, AND DIMENSION PLAN

L-4.1 CONSTRUCTION DETAILS
L-4.2 CONSTRUCTION DETAILS

L-4.3 CONSTRUCTION DETAILS



X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X
X

X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX
X

X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

D
EER

H
ILL R

O
AD

DOUBLETREE ROAD

DEERBROOK ROAD

BISH
O

PSW
O

O
D

S LAN
E

PROPOSED PICKLEBALL COURT
CONVERSION LOCATION

(E)PANEL - 'A'

CB

CB
CB

CB

CB
CB

CB

CB

CB

CB

CB

CBCB

CB

2" W.

2" W
.

DFDF

TC

TC

(E)MAIN SWBD - 'MS'

TEMPORARY FENCING W/PRIVACY
SCREEN

63.0 TG
62.0 INV

CB

CB

CB

CB

CB

CB

CB
62.9 TG
61.0 INV

63.0 TG
59.5 INV

63.9 TG
62.9 INV

6" PVC L=75.54S=0.019

63.0 TG
61.5 INV

63.8 TG
61.1 INV

6" PVC L=65.90S=0.015

6" PVC L=99.15S=0.015

8" PVC L=23.12
S=0.015

8" PVC L=114.74
S=0.015

2" W. 2" W.

DF

8" PVC L=31.50
S=0.015

12
" W

.
12

" W
.

4" S.

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X

XXXXXXXX

X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X

X X X X

X X

X X X X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

TC

TC

1-1/4"C. 4 #6 + 1 #8 A, 2-4 & 6-8

A, 2-4

A, 10-12

A, 2-4

A, 2-4

A, 6-8

A, 6-8

A, 6-8

A, 2-4

A, 2-4

A, 2-4

A, 6-8

A, 6-8

A, 6-8

A, 10

A, 10 A, 12

A, 12

1"
C

. 
4

 #
8

 +
 1

 #
8G

. 3/4"C
.  4

 #10 + 1 #10G
.

3/4"C
.  4

 #10
 +

 1 #10G
.3/

4"
C

. 
4

 #
10

 +
 1

 #
10

G
.

3/
4"

C
. 

4
 #

10
 +

 1
 #

10G
.

3 / 4 "C .  4  # 10  +  1  # 10G . 3 / 4 " C .  4  # 10  +  1  # 10G .

1

TRASH RECEPTACLE

CB

DF

TC

DRINKING FOUNTAIN

DUPLEX ELECTRICAL RECEPTACLE

WARNING LIGHT / BUZZER

ON/OFF PUSH BUTTON

CATCH BASIN DRAIN

DOUBLE POLE MOUNTED LIGHT
FIXTURE
SINGLE POLE MOUNTED LIGHT
FIXTURE

2

B

1 3 4 5 6

1 32 4 5 6

A

C

D

E

SHEET NUMBER

DATE: SHEET: OF:

PROJECT TITLE

DRAWN :

PROJECT NO. CHECKED: 

SCALE :

SHEET TITLE:

STAMPS/SEALS

D
EE

R
H

IL
L 

PA
R

K 
- P

IC
KL

EB
AL

L 
C

O
U

R
T 

C
O

N
VE

R
SI

O
N

 P
R

O
JE

C
T

DEERHILL PARK
PICKLEBALL COURT

CONVERSTION PROJECT

6700 DOUBLETREE RD.
OAK PARK, CA. 91377

REVISIONS:

DEERHILL PARK
PICKLEBALL COURT

CONVERSION PROJECT

W.N.

J.S. 1" = 50'-0"

L-1.1

SI
TE

 P
LA

N

OVERALL SITE PLAN

1. VERIFY ALL FIELD CONDITIONS AND UTILITY LOCATIONS PRIOR TO
ANY CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES. IF ANY DISCREPANCIES OR
UNKNOWN UTILITIES ARE FOUND THAT IMPACT OR IMPAIR
CONSTRUCTION, CONTACT THE PARK DISTRICT REPRESENTATIVE
IMMEDIATELY.

2. DO NOT WILLFULLY PROCEED WITH CONSTRUCTION WHEN IT IS
OBVIOUS THAT KNOWN OBSTRUCTIONS EXIST THAT MAY NOT HAVE
BEEN KNOWN DURING DESIGN. SUCH CONDITIONS SHALL BE
IMMEDIATELY BROUGHT TO THE ATTENTION OF PARK DISTRICT
REPRESENTATIVE. ASSUME RESPONSIBILITY FOR ALL NECESSARY
REVISION DUE TO FAILURE TO GIVE SUCH NOTIFICATION.

3. ALL WORK SHALL CONFORM TO THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE LATEST
EDITIONS OF THE CALIFORNIA BUILDING CODE, THE AMERICANS WITH
DISABILITIES ACT, AND ALL OTHER APPLICABLE LOCAL AND STATE
CODES, ORDINANCES, AND REGULATIONS.

4. ALL DELETERIOUS AND WASTE MATERIALS WITHIN THE LIMITS OF
WORK SHALL BE DISPOSED OF OFFSITE BY THE CONTRACTORS, WHO
SHALL MAKE ALL NECESSARY ARRANGEMENTS AND PAY ALL
RELATED COSTS.

5. ACTIVE UTILITIES SHALL BE PROTECTED BY AND AT THE EXPENSE OF
THE CONTRACTOR. KEEP ANY REQUIRED UTILITY IN OPERATING
CONDITION DURING THE ENTIRE PERIOD OF WORK, INCLUDING ALL
ADJACENT IRRIGATION SYSTEMS.

6. BEFORE CONSTRUCTION BEGINS, THE SITE MUST BE SECURED WITH
A 6'-0" TEMPORARY, CHAINLINK CONSTRUCTION FENCE WITH GREEN
PRIVACY SCREEN. INSTALL IN A MANNER THAT WILL PREVENT
INTRUSION INTO THE CONSTRUCTION AND STAGING AREAS.
CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY THAT THE FENCE IS IN AN UPRIGHT
POSITION AT THE END OF EACH WORK DAY.

7. ALL EXISTING PARK SITE AMENITIES/ELEMENTS, INCLUDING BUT
NOT LIMITED TO, SITE FURNITURE, PARK INFRASTRUCTURE,
WALKWAYS, PLANT MATERIALS, ETC. WITHIN THE CONSTRUCTION
ZONE AND NOT LABEL FOR DEMOLITION SHALL BE PROTECTED
THROUGHOUT THE ENTIRETY OF THE PROJECT. ANY DAMAGES TO
EXISTING PARK SITE AMENITIES/ELEMENTS SHALL BE REPLACED
BY THE CONTRACTOR AT NO COST TO THE PARK DISTRICT.

8. CONTRACTOR SHALL REQUEST AND RECEIVE WRITTEN APPROVAL
FROM THE PARK DISTRICT REPRESENTATIVE FOR ANY ADDITIONAL
WORK PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT OF SAID WORK. NO ADDITIONAL
WORK BY CONTRACTOR WILL BE AUTHORIZED UNTIL A CHANGE
ORDER IS SIGNED BY ALL PARTIES.

9. EXISTING TENNIS COURT AREA: 14,465 SQ. FT.

10. PROPOSED PICKLEBALL COURT AREA: 14,570 SQ. FT.

11. CONCRETE FLATWORK AREAS: 1,100 SQ. FT.

SITE PLAN NOTES

TENNIS
COURTS BASKETBALL

COURTS

PARKING LOT

PAR
KIN

G
 LO

TBASEBALL
FIELD

SOCCER/LACROSSE
FIELD

LAWN AREA

N

TR
U

E 
N

O
RT

H

N

PROJECT UTILITY SITE PLAN PANEL SCHEDULE

SYMBOL KEY 

03/26/2024 2 8



TRASH RECEPTACLE

DF

TC

DRINKING FOUNTAIN

DUPLEX ELECTRICAL RECEPTACLE

WARNING LIGHT / BUZZER

ON/OFF PUSH BUTTON

CATCH BASIN DRAIN

DOUBLE POLE MOUNTED LIGHT
FIXTURE
SINGLE POLE MOUNTED LIGHT
FIXTURE

NO

PARKING

DF

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X

X

X

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

X
X

XX

X

X
XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

X
X

X
X

X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X

X
X

X

X

X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X

X
X

X
X

X X
X

X
X

X

X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X

X
X

X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

TC

TC

A

A

A

A

B

B

B

B

C C

D D

E

E

E E

E

E

F F

FF

F F

G

X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X

G G

4'-0"

C C

B

(E)TREE MAY NEED TO BE REMOVED  IF
NEW CURB WILL CAUSE INSTABILITY
DUE TO ROOT DISTURBANCE,
COORDINATE WITH PARK DISTRICT REP.

(E)TREE MAY NEED TO BE REMOVED  IF
NEW CURB WILL CAUSE INSTABILITY
DUE TO ROOT DISTURBANCE,
COORDINATE WITH PARK DISTRICT REP.

4'-0"

DEMO EXIST. C.L. FENCE AS
REQUIRED TO INSTALL NEW ENTRY
GATE, L-4.3/4.

BDEMO EXIST. C.L. FENCE AS
REQUIRED TO INSTALL NEW ENTRY

GATE, L-4.3/4.

TERMINAL POST SHALL REMAIN TERMINAL POST SHALL REMAIN

B

DEMO EXIST. C.L. FENCE AS
REQUIRED TO INSTALL NEW ENTRY
GATE, L-4.3/4.B

DEMO EXIST. C.L. FENCE AS
REQUIRED TO INSTALL NEW ENTRY

GATE, L-4.3/4.

TERMINAL POST SHALL REMAIN TERMINAL POST SHALL REMAIN

SAW AND REMOVE EXISTING CONCRETE. REMOVE EXISTING SITE
AMENITIES, EXISTING CATCH BASIN DRAIN AND JOIN EXISTING
DRAINAGE PIPES.

REMOVE EXISTING LIGHT  POLE AND ALL RELATED ACCESSORIES.

SWEEP, POWERWASH, AND BRUSH EXITING TENNIS COURT
SURFACE AS NEEDED TO PREPARE SURFACE FOR REPAINTING AND
RESTRIPING.

SINGLE LED FIXTURE, ON EXISTING POLE, PROTECT POLE IN PLACE.

QUAD LED FIXTURE, HORNS AND PUSH BUTTON SYSTEM ON
EXISTING POLE, PROTECT IN PLACE.

DEMOLISH AND REMOVE EXISTING CHAINLINK FENCING, GATES,
POLES, FOOTINGS, AND ALL RELATED ACCESSORIES AS REQUIRED
FOR NEW FENCING MODIFICATIONS.

DEMOLISH AND REMOVE EXISTING GRASS. COORDINATE REMOVAL
OF EXISTING IRRIGATION HEADS AND RECONNECTING OF LATERAL
SPRINKLER LINES WITH PARK DISTRICT REPRESENTATIVE.

A

B

C

D

E

F

G

DEERHILL PARK
PICKLEBALL COURT

CONVERSION PROJECT

W.N.

J.S. 1/8" = 1'-0"

L-2.1

D
EM

O
LI

TI
O

N
 P

LA
N

DEMOLITION PLAN

SYMBOL KEY 

DEMOLITION NOTES

DEMOLITION KEY 

2

B

1 3 4 5 6

1 32 4 5 6

A

C

D

E

SHEET NUMBER

DATE: SHEET: OF:

PROJECT TITLE

DRAWN :

PROJECT NO. CHECKED: 

SCALE :

SHEET TITLE:

STAMPS/SEALS

D
EE

R
H

IL
L 

PA
R

K 
- P

IC
KL

EB
AL

L 
C

O
U

R
T 

C
O

N
VE

R
SI

O
N

 P
R

O
JE

C
T

DEERHILL PARK
PICKLEBALL COURT

CONVERSTION PROJECT

6700 DOUBLETREE RD.
OAK PARK, CA. 91377

REVISIONS:

1. CONTRACTOR SHALL BRING ANY CHANGED OR UNFORSEEN CONDITIONS THAT COULD
RESULT IN ADDITIONAL COST TO THE ATTENTION OF THE PARK DISTRICT
REPRESENTATIVE AS SOON AS THEY ARE DISCOVERED, SO THAT THEY CAN BE PROPERLY
DOCUMENTED. FAILURE TO NOTIFY OR COVERING UNWITNESSED WORK SHALL RESULT IN
REJECTION CLAIMS FOR ADDITIONAL COMPENSATION.

2. PROTECT ALL STRUCTURES AND LANDSCAPE ELEMENTS NOT LABELED FOR DEMOLITION
FROM DAMAGE DURING CONSTRUCTION. ANY ON-SITE OR OFF-SITE AREAS DISTURBED
DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY DUE TO CONSTRUCTION SHALL BE RETURNED TO A CONDITION
EQUAL TO OR BETTER THAN THE EXISTING CONDITION. CONTRACTOR IS SOLELY
RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY PENALTIES RESULTING FROM THEIR WORK UNDER THIS
CONTRACT.

3. PROVIDE NECESSARY BARRICADES, SUFFICIENT LIGHTS, SIGNS, AND OTHER TRAFFIC
CONTROL METHODS AS MAY BE NECESSARY FOR THE PROTECTION AND SAFTEY OF THE
PUBLIC AND MAINTAIN THROUGHOUT THE LIFE OF THE PROJECT.

4. NO DEMOLITION MATERIALS SHALL BE DISPOSED OF ON-SITE. ALL DEBRIS SHALL BE
HAULED OFF-SITE TO A DISPOSAL FACILITY APPROVED BY APPROPRIATE GOVENMENTAL
AUTHORITIES FOR HANDLING OF DEMOLITION DEBRIS. THE WORK SITE SHALL BE LEFT IN A
CONDITION THAT MINIMIZES INJURY POTENTIAL ON A NIGHTLY BASIS.

5. REMOVE CONCRETE WHERE SHOWN ON PLANS. CONCRETE REMOVALS SHALL BE SAWCUT
(NO JACKHAMMERING) ALONG EXISTING CONCRETE TO CREATE SMOOTH TRANSITIONS
BETWEEN EXISTING AND NEW PAVEMENT.

6. CONTRACTOR TO REMOVE AND DISPOSE OF FOOTINGS AND ALL RELATED ACCESSORIES
OF BENCHES, FENCING, FENCING POSTS, LIGHT FIXTURES, AND/OR LIGHT POLES AS
CALLED OUT ON PLANS.

7. ALL PRECAUTIONS SHALL BE TAKEN TO PREVENT TRACKING OF MATERIALS ONTO
EXISTING ROADS THROUGHOUT THE LIFE OF THE PROJECT.

N

TR
U

E 
N

O
RT

H

03/26/2024 3 8



TRASH RECEPTACLE

DF

TC

DRINKING FOUNTAIN

DUPLEX ELECTRICAL RECEPTACLE

WARNING LIGHT / BUZZER

ON/OFF PUSH BUTTON

CATCH BASIN DRAIN

DOUBLE POLE MOUNTED LIGHT
FIXTURE
SINGLE POLE MOUNTED LIGHT
FIXTURE

DF

NO

PARKING

DF

X
X

X

X

X

XXXXXXXXXX

TC

XXXXXXXXXX

X
X

X
X

X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X

X
X

X

X

X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X

X
X

X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

3

4

7 7

8

9

10 1111

15

7

7 7

12 12

12 12

13 13

13 13

13 13

X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

A

B

B

3

2

C

D

2

7

2

11

2222

X

6

15

11

11

11

11

12

7

X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X

B

TCTC

7

64.5
64.0
63.5

2.3%

9.75% 5.35%

2.0%2.0%2.0%

X

X
X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X

X
X

X

X
X

6 6 6 6

66

14 14

5

5

15

NEW 12' HIGH CHAINLINK
FENCING

NEW 12' HIGH CHAINLINK
FENCING

NEW AREA DRAIN, CONNECT TO
EXISTING DRAINAGE SYSTEM 16

NEW CONCRETE LANDING AND 12" CURB, L-4.2/1

+8"

+24"

+16"
63.0

+30"

+24"

+16"

+30"

+8"

NEW REINFORCED CONCRETE LANDING AT THE BOTTOM OF
EXISTING STAIRCASE, L-4.2/4

NEW REINFORCED CONCRETE PAD OVER COMPACTED AGGREGATE
BASE AND 95% RELATIVE COMPACTED SUBGRADE.

NEW PLANTER AREA, SEE PLANTING PLAN, L4.3/1 & 2.

NEW REINFORCED CONCRETE, DOWELED INTO EXISTING SLABS,
GRINDED (AS REQUIRED) TO CREATE A SMOOTH AND EVEN
PLAYING SURFACE, L-4.1/2.

A

B

C

D

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

INSTALL NEW REINFORCED CONCRETE LANDING AND EXTENDED
12" CURB AT BASE OF STAIRCASE, L-4.2/1

INSTALL NEW 12' HIGH CHAINLINK FENCING AND 4' WIDE SINGLE
ENTRY GATE, L-4.2/5 & L-4.3/4

INSTALL NEW CONCRETE, DOWEL INTO EXISTING, GRIND AS
NEEDED TO CREATE SMOOTH EVEN SURFACE, L-4.1/2

INSTALL NEW REINCFORCED CONCRETE PAD AND ENTRIES L-4.1/1

INSTALL NEW TRASH RECEPTACLE, TO BE PROVIDED BY THE PARK
DISTRICT, L-4.1/3

INSTALL NEW LANDSCAPE STRUCTURES, INC. TENDERTUFF 72"
BENCH, COLOR SHALL BE GRASS GREEN, L-4.1/4

AFTER CLEANING AND PREPARING SURFACE, APPLY PRIMER COAT
BEFORE APPLYING BASE COATS AND STRIPING, L-4.3/3

QUAD LED LIGHT FIXTURE, HORN, AND PUSH BUTTON SYSTEM ON
EXISTING POLE TO REMAIN, PROTECT IN PLACE.

RELOCATED ON/OFF PUSH BUTTON TIMER CONTROL

RELOCATED WARNING LIGHT AND BUZZER

13

SINGLE LED LIGHT FIXTURE ON  EXISTING POLE TO REMAIN,
PROTECT AND PLACE.

INSTALL NEW 48" HIGH CHAINLINK PEDESTRIAN ENTRY AND
MAINTENACE GATES, L-4.1/7

INSTALL NEW 48" HIGH CHAINLINK FENCING AND GATES, L-4.1/8 & 9

14

15 NEW PLANTER AREA, SEE PLANTING PLAN, L-4.3/1 & 2

INSTALL NEW 36" HIGH, TAPERED SPLIT FACED CMU RETAINING
WALL WITH WALL CAP, L-4.2/1

16 NEW ENTRY STAIRS AND HANDRAIL, L-4.2/6

DEERHILL PARK
PICKLEBALL COURT

CONVERSION PROJECT

W.N.

J.S. 1/8" = 1'-0"

L-3.1

C
O

N
ST

R
U

C
TI

O
N

 P
LA

N

CONSTRUCTION PLAN

SYMBOL KEY 

N

TR
U

E 
N

O
RT

H

CONSTRUCTION NOTES

CONSTRUCTION KEYED NOTES 

2

B

1 3 4 5 6

1 32 4 5 6

A

C

D

E

SHEET NUMBER

DATE: SHEET: OF:

PROJECT TITLE

DRAWN :

PROJECT NO. CHECKED: 

SCALE :

SHEET TITLE:

STAMPS/SEALS

D
EE

R
H

IL
L 

PA
R

K 
- P

IC
KL

EB
AL

L 
C

O
U

R
T 

C
O

N
VE

R
SI

O
N

 P
R

O
JE

C
T

DEERHILL PARK
PICKLEBALL COURT

CONVERSTION PROJECT

6700 DOUBLETREE RD.
OAK PARK, CA. 91377

REVISIONS:

1. AFTER CLEANING BUT BEFORE REPAINTING AND STRIPING OF COURTS, INSPECT THE
ENTIRE SURFACE FOR ANY IMPERFECTIONS THAT REQUIRE REPAIR, CRACK FILLING,
PATCHING, AND/OR SANDING TO ACHIEVE A SMOOTH AND CONTIUOUS SURFACE.

2. BEFORE APPLYING ANY SURFACE PRIMER MAKE SURE THE SURFACE IS CLEAN, DRY, AND
FREE OF DEBRIS.

3. COURT SURFACING SHALL BE "PLEXIPAVE ATHLETIC SURFACES," - PLEXI H.U. (TEXTURED
SURFACE). SURFACE SHALL BE PREPARED AND INSTALLED PER MAUNFACTURER'S
RECOMMENDATIONS. CONTRACTOR TO PROVIDE COLOR AND MATERIAL SAMPLES FOR
PARK DISTRICT APPROVAL PRIOR TO INSTALLATION.

3.1. PLEXIPAVE COLORS: PLAYING SURFACE - USTA BLUE, NON-VOLLEY ZONE - LIGHT
GREY, PERIMETER AREA - DARK GREEN, COURT LINES - WHITE

4. ALL PLACEMENT/LOCATIONS OF POSTS FOR FENCING AND PICKLEBALL COURT NET POSTS
MUST BE APPROVED BY PARK DISTRICT PRIOR TO INSTALLATION.

5. ALL CONTRACTION JOINTS SHALL OCCUR ALONG THE CENTER NETLINE ONLY.
6. INSTALL FENCESCREEN SOUND BLOCK 850 SERIES, ACOUSTICAL DAMPENING MATERIAL

ON ALL FENCE AND GATE PANELS SURROUNDING THE ENTIRE COURT.

CONSTRUCTION KEY 

03/26/2024 4 8

AutoCAD SHX Text
CB

AutoCAD SHX Text
CB



TRASH RECEPTACLE

DF

TC

DRINKING FOUNTAIN

DUPLEX ELECTRICAL RECEPTACLE

WARNING LIGHT / BUZZER

ON/OFF PUSH BUTTON

CATCH BASIN DRAIN

DOUBLE POLE MOUNTED LIGHT
FIXTURE
SINGLE POLE MOUNTED LIGHT
FIXTURE

DF

NO

PARKING

DF

TC

40'-8" 40'-8" 40'-8"

165'-6 1/2"

122'-0"

62'-0"

6'-0"27'-6" 28'-6"

10'-4"10'-0"10'-0"

16
'-1

1"

8'
-5

 1
/2

"
22

'-0
"

7'
-0

"
15

'-0
"

8'
-5

 1
/2

"

12
1'

-1
0"

8'
-5

 1
/2

"
22

'-0
"

7'
-0

"
15

'-0
"

8'
-5

 1
/2

"

10'-4"10'-4"10'-4" 10'-0" 10'-0" 10'-4" 10'-4"

44
'-0

"

1 1 1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1 1

1 1 1

22'-0"

2
3

2

45
TYP. TYP.

4
TYP.

45
TYP. TYP.

4
TYP.

45
TYP. TYP.

4
TYP.

45
TYP. TYP.

4
TYP.

X
X

X

X

X

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

X
X

X
X

X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X

X
X

X

X

X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X

X
X

X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X

2
3

2
3

X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X XX X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X

TCTC

2.3%

9.75% 5.35%

2.0%

CB
CB

2.0%2.0%

35'-0"

6'
-0

"

13
'-6

"

64.5
64.0
63.5
63.0

1

2

3

4

5

INSTALL NEW COURTS NUMBER SIGNS, TWO (2) EACH COURT.
SIGNS SHALL BE OFCI. VERIFY FINAL LOCATIONS WITH PARK
DISTRICT PRIOR INSTALLATION.
INSTALL NEW PICKLEBALL COURTS RULES SIGN, ONE (1) AT EACH
ENTRY GATE. SIGNS SHALL BE OFCI. VERIFY FINAL LOCATIONS
WITH PARK DISTRICT PRIOR TO INSTALL.
INSTALL NEW NEXTuP PICKLEBALL 'PADDLESADDLE' RACK, SIZE - 8
PADDLES, ADJACENT TO ENTRY GATES. VERIFY FINAL LOCATIONS
WITH PARK DISTRICT PRIOR TO INSTALL.

INSTALL NEW PICKLEBALL COURT NET POSTS, L-4.1/5. TYPICAL OF
ALL COURTS

INSTALL NEW PICKLEBALL COURT CENTER TENSION NET ANCHOR
POST, L-4.1/6. TYPICAL OF ALL COURTS

X
XXXXXXXXXX

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X

X

X X X X X X X X X X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

XCourt: #4 Court: #5 Court: #6

Court: #1 Court: #2 Court: #3

DEERHILL PARK
PICKLEBALL COURT

CONVERSION PROJECT

W.N.

J.S. 1/8" = 1'-0"

L-3.2

SU
R

FA
C

IN
G

, S
IG

N
AG

E,
AN

D
 D

IM
EN

SI
O

N
 P

LA
N

SURFACING, SIGNAGE, AND DIMENSIONS PLAN

SYMBOL KEY 

N

TR
U

E 
N

O
RT

H

2

B

1 3 4 5 6

1 32 4 5 6

A

C

D

E

SHEET NUMBER

DATE: SHEET: OF:

PROJECT TITLE

DRAWN :

PROJECT NO. CHECKED: 

SCALE :

SHEET TITLE:

STAMPS/SEALS

D
EE

R
H

IL
L 

PA
R

K 
- P

IC
KL

EB
AL

L 
C

O
U

R
T 

C
O

N
VE

R
SI

O
N

 P
R

O
JE

C
T

DEERHILL PARK
PICKLEBALL COURT

CONVERSTION PROJECT

6700 DOUBLETREE RD.
OAK PARK, CA. 91377

REVISIONS:

CONSTRUCTION NOTES

CONSTRUCTION KEYED NOTES 

COURT COLORS & NUMBER

1/16" = 1'-0"

03/26/2024 5 8

1. AFTER CLEANING BUT BEFORE REPAINTING AND STRIPING OF COURTS, INSPECT THE
ENTIRE SURFACE FOR ANY IMPERFECTIONS THAT REQUIRE REPAIR, CRACK FILLING,
PATCHING, AND/OR SANDING TO ACHIEVE A SMOOTH AND CONTIUOUS SURFACE.

2. BEFORE APPLYING ANY SURFACE PRIMER MAKE SURE THE SURFACE IS CLEAN, DRY, AND
FREE OF DEBRIS.

3. COURT SURFACING SHALL BE "PLEXIPAVE ATHLETIC SURFACES," - PLEXI H.U. (TEXTURED
SURFACE). SURFACE SHALL BE PREPARED AND INSTALLED PER MAUNFACTURER'S
RECOMMENDATIONS. CONTRACTOR TO PROVIDE COLOR AND MATERIAL SAMPLES FOR
PARK DISTRICT APPROVAL PRIOR TO INSTALLATION.

3.1. PLEXIPAVE COLORS: PLAYING SURFACE - USTA BLUE, NON-VOLLEY ZONE - LIGHT
GREY, PERIMETER AREA - DARK GREEN, COURT LINES - WHITE

4. ALL PLACEMENT/LOCATIONS OF POSTS FOR FENCING AND PICKLEBALL COURT NET POSTS
MUST BE APPROVED BY PARK DISTRICT PRIOR TO INSTALLATION.

5. ALL CONTRACTION JOINTS SHALL OCCUR ALONG THE CENTER NETLINE ONLY.
6. INSTALL FENCESCREEN SOUND BLOCK 850 SERIES, ACOUSTICAL DAMPENING MATERIAL

ON ALL FENCE AND GATE PANELS SURROUNDING THE ENTIRE COURT.



CONCRETE SLAB OR WALK,
SLOPE 1/4" PER FOOT TO DRAIN,
LIGHT BROOM FINISH, UNLESS
OTHERWISE NOTED

6"

2"

3/4" RADIUS, TYP.

FINISH GRADE

9"

95% COMPACTED SOIL

4"

(N)#4 REBAR, 24"O.C. EA. WAY

4" AGGREGATE BASE

(N)24" LONG X 3/4"Ø SLIP DOWEL @
24" O.C. EXTENDED 12" INTO EACH

SLAB, CONTINUOUS THROUGH
EXPANSION JOINT, GREASE ONE END

ONLY

(N)6" CONCRETE SLAB

(E)AGGREGATE BASE, LEAVE
UNDISTURBED OR COMPACT TO
95% RELAVATIVE COMPACTION

(N)9GA. GALV. WWM, MIN
1" COVER

CONSTRUCTION JOINT, RAD. SHALL
BE 1/8"  MAX., TYP.

(E)COURT SURFACE (E)COURT SURFACE

(N)#4 REBAR, EA. WAY

(E)COMPACTED SUBGRADE

(N)COURT SURFACE

6"

4'-0"
MIN.

PER MANUFACTURER'S
RECOMMENDATION

1'
-0

"

1'-0"

PERMANENT BASE MOUNT

4" CONC. SLAB

PATTERSON-WILLIAMS #1150-PL
LITTER RECEPTACLE W/ PLASTIC
DOME LID. COLOR SHALL BE
RECYCLED CEDAR W/ DARK BROWN
FRAME

CONCRETE FOOTING

6 
3/

4"

6'-0"

2'
-6

"

1'
-5

"
2'

-0
"

1'
-8

"
M

IN
.

1'-0"

4'-0"

TOP OF
PLANK

TOP OF
PLANK

FINISH GRADE

(2)BENCH FRAMES

SEAT PLANK

BACK PLANK

CONCRETE FOOTING

SUBGRADE

AGGREGATE BASE

22'-0" BETWEEN POSTS

2 1/2"

15"Ø

34
"

NOTES:

POST ASSEMBLY TO BE LA STEELCRAFT MODEL #N6-400 OR EQUAL.

NET ASSEMBLY TO BE LA STEELCRAFT MODEL #NCN-20.  ASSEMBLE WITH
5/32" VINYL COATED AIRCRAFT CABLE THROUGH THE TOP BAND OF THE NET.

ANY SUBSTITUTION FOR EITHER THE POST OR NET MUST FIRST BE
APPROVED BY THE PARK DISTRICT PRIOR TO PURCHASING AND INSTALLING.

34
"

36
"

NET ANCHOR
SEE DETAIL L-4.1/6

NET POSTNET POST

FINISH GRADE

CONCRETE FOOTING

COMPACTED SUBGRADE

NOTES:

ANCHOR ASSEMBLY AVAILABLE AT
BSN SPORTS TENNIS CENTER STRAP
GROUND ANCHOR ITEM #1234466

AGGREGATE BASE

COMPACTED SUBGRADE

COURT PAVEMENT FINISH
GRADE

AGGREGATE BASE

CENTER
STRAP ANCHOR

#4 REBAR, EA. WAY

CONCRETE FOOTING

FINISH GRADE

4'
-0

"

1.5"

12'Ø

18
"

3'-9" OPENING9'-0"

10'-0" FACE TO FACE

2" NPS END POST

9GA. X 2" MESH GALV.
CHAINLINK FABRIC,

KNUCKLED

HINGE TOP & BOTTOM

3/8"Ø TRUSS ROD

TOP RAIL

1 12" BOTTOM RAIL
2 12" X 15" 10S SST PIPE SLEEVE

W/ 3/8" Ø M.B. ANCHOR, 3"
FROM BOTTOM

COMPACTED SUBGRADE

CONCRETE FOOTING

2" NPS END POST

(2)-7/16" Ø CARRIAGE
BOLTS, TOP & BOTTOM

REMOVABLE POST

NOTES:

1. ALL FABRIC, POSTS AND HARDWARE TO BE HOT DIP GALVANIZED
KNUCKLE TOP OF FABRIC

2. TIE FABRIC TO POSTS, RAILS & TENSION WIRES OR RODS WITH 11 GA
GALVANIZED WIRE AT 12" O.C. MAX.

3. ALL POSTS & RAILS SHALL BE SCHD 40 STD WT. PIPE
4. FOR FOOTINGS SEE 4' HIGH CHAINLINK FENCING L-5.1/9

FINISH GRADE

4'
-0

"

1.5"

NOTES:

1. ALL FABRIC, POSTS AND HARDWARE TO BE HOT DIP GALVANIZED
KNUCKLE TOP OF FABRIC

2. TIE FABRIC TO POSTS, RAILS & TENSION WIRES OR RODS WITH 11 GA
GALVANIZED WIRE AT 12" O.C. MAX.

3. ALL POSTS & RAILS SHALL BE SCHD 40 STD WT. PIPE
4. FOR FOOTINGS SEE 4' HIGH CHAINLINK FENCING L-5.1/9

4'-0"

2" NPS END POST

9GA. X 2" MESH GALV.
CHAINLINK FABRIC,

KNUCKLED

HINGE TOP & BOTTOM

1 12" TOP RAIL

1 12" POST

2" NPS END POST

GATE LATCH

1 12" BOTTOM RAIL

FINISH GRADE

TYP. POST SPACING
(10' O.C. MAX)

4'
-0

"

2"

2 1/2"
12"Ø

30
"

NOTES:

1. ALL FABRIC, POSTS AND HARDWARE TO BE HOT DIP GALVANIZED
KNUCKLE TOP OF FABRIC

2. TIE FABRIC TO POSTS, RAILS & TENSION WIRES OR RODS WITH 11 GA
GALVANIZED WIRE AT 12" O.C. MAX.

3. ALL POSTS & RAILS SHALL BE SCHD 40 STD WT. PIPE

EYE CAP, TYP.

1 12" TOP RAIL

9GA. X 2" MESH GALV.
CHAINLINK FABRIC,

KNUCKLED

1 12" BOTTOM RAIL

2" LINE POST COMPACTED SUBGRADE

CONCRETE FOOTING

TERMINAL POST

STRETCHER BAR
(TERMINAL AND
CORNER POSTS)

POST CAP

METAL STRAPS, 12"
O.C. (TERMINAL AND
CORNER POSTS)

DEERHILL PARK
PICKLEBALL COURT

CONVERSION PROJECT

W.N.

J.S. --

L-4.1

C
O

N
ST

R
U

C
TI

O
N

 D
ET

AI
LS

6" PICKLEBALL COURT SLAB 4" CONCRETE SLAB

NET ANCHOR

TRASH RECEPTACLE

4' HIGH FENCING 4' HIGH GATE 4' HIGH MAINTENANCE GATE

123

456

789

NET AND POST ASSEMBLY BENCH FOOTING

2

B

1 3 4 5 6

1 32 4 5 6

A

C

D

E

SHEET NUMBER

DATE: SHEET: OF:

PROJECT TITLE

DRAWN :

PROJECT NO. CHECKED: 

SCALE :

SHEET TITLE:

STAMPS/SEALS

D
EE

R
H

IL
L 

PA
R

K 
- P

IC
KL

EB
AL

L 
C

O
U

R
T 

C
O

N
VE

R
SI

O
N

 P
R

O
JE

C
T

DEERHILL PARK
PICKLEBALL COURT

CONVERSTION PROJECT

6700 DOUBLETREE RD.
OAK PARK, CA. 91377

REVISIONS:

03/26/2024 6 8



CONC. PAD

EXISTING CONC. WALK

2'
-6

"
AB

O
VE

 N
O

SE

1'-0"

6"

1'
-0

"

1'-0"6"

2"

2"

2'-0"

#3 REBAR @ 18"O.C., EA. WAY

#3 REBAR AT NOSING, TYP.

#3 DOWEL @ 18"O.C., PROVIDE PVC SLEEVE,
ONE SIDE

EXP. JOINT, TYP.

1" BATTER, TYP. EA. RISER

NOSING, SEE ENLARGEMENT

90% COMPACTED SUBGRADE

1/2" RADIUS, TYP.

1

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

2" 1"

3"

ENLARGEMENT

3

4
6

5

7

3

FOUR 1/8"W. X 1/4" DEEP SCORE
LINES

2"Ø TUBULAR STL. RAIL

2"Ø TUBULAR STL POSTS

WET SET PLATE 1/4" X 4" W/ (2)#3
X 8" ANCHORS

10

11

12

8

9

2

3/16" TYP.

8"

7"

11

5
12

12

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

RETAINED MATERIAL MUST BE AT OR
BELOW TOP OF WALL.

MIN. 2" #4 REBAR BOND BEAM AT TOP
OF WALL.

8" SPLIT FACED CMU BLOCK & WALL
CAP, ALL CELLS GROUTED WITH MIN.
2000 PSI GROUT.

MIN. #4 REBAR @ 16" O.C. EACH WAY.

MIN. #4 REBAR @ 12" O.C. BOTH
WAYS, 3" MIN. CLEARANCE TO EARTH.

12" X 12" MIN. KEYWAY WITH VERT.
REBAR EXTENDING INTO KEYWAY
AND MIN. 1 #4 HORIZ. REBAR.

DRAIN ROCK TO EXTEND TO +/-12"
BELOW GRADE.

MIN 12" OF 1/2" DRAIN ROCK.

MIN. 4" PERFORATED DRAIN PIPE,
SLOPE AND CONNECT TO DRAINAGE
SYSTEM WITH 45° WYE FITTING.

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10'-0" O.C. MAX
AT INTERMEDIATE POST

4'-0"
GATE OPENING

10'-0" MAX
AT CORNER POST, TYP.

℄ ℄℄ ℄

H
EI

G
H

T 
VA

R
IE

S
12

'-0
" M

AX
.

NOTES:

1. FENCE DRAWINGS ARE DIAGRAMMATICAL AND USED FOR REFERENCE IN
CONSTRUCTING THE FENCES AND GATES. CONTRACTOR SHALL BE
RESPONSIBLE FOR THE PURCHASE AND CONSTRUCTION OF ALL FENCE
MATERIALS, ACCESSORIES, AND RELATED ITEMS IN ORDER TO PROVIDE A
COMPLETE AND FUNCTIONAL INSTALLATION. MATERIALS SHALL MATCH
EXISTING (HOT-DIP GALV., UON).

2. ALL WIRE MESH FENCE FABRIC:
2.1. SHALL BE ON THE INSIDE OF THE POST EXCEPT AT TERMINAL POSTS.
2.2. TO BE KNUCKLED AT TOP AND BOTTOM RAILS.
2.3. TIE WIRES 1'-6" O.C., MAX. SPACING, TYP.

3. INSTALL FENCESCREEN MAXFlex PVC MESH - 300 SERIES PRIVACY
WINDSCREEN FABRIC ON INSIDE OF ALL FENCE PANELS AND GATES
SURROUNDING THE ENTIRE COURT. COLOR SHALL BE FOREST GREEN.

4. INSTALL FENCESCREEN SOUND BLOCK 850 SERIES, ACOUSTICAL
DAMPENING MATERIAL ON INSIDE OF ALL FENCE PANELS SURROUNDING
THE ENTIRE COURT, GATES EXCLUDED.

5. NEW FENCE PANELS MAY REUSE SAVED/SALVAGED FABRIC FROM
DEMOLISHED PANELS, AS LONG AS THEY FIT CORRECTLY, AND ARE IN
GOOD CONDITION; FREE FROM RIPS, TEARS, OR ANY OTHER DAMAGE OR
DEFECTS. OTHERWISE, THEY ARE TO BE REPLACED WITH NEW
WINDSCREEN FABRIC, MATCH EXISTING COLOR, WEAVE, AND STYLE, ETC.

6. GATE RESTRICTER PLATE, WELDED TO GATE TO ONLY OPEN INWARDS
TOWARDS COURTS, TYP.

6'
-6

"

3"

2'-0"

6'
-6

"

3"

2'-0"

H
EI

G
H

T 
VA

R
IE

S
6'

-0
" M

AX
.

℄

1 12" TOP RAIL

9GA. X 2" MESH GALV.
CHAINLINK FABRIC,

KNUCKLED

4" TERMINAL POST

GALV. TENSION BANDS, SIZED PER
POST, TYP.

CAST IRON POST CAP

1 12" MID RAIL

EYE CAP, TYP.

1 1/2" CLEAR, TYP.

10" KICKPLATE

1 12" BOTTOM RAIL

HEAVY DUTY CAST STEEL
BUTTERFLY GATE LATCH.

9GA. X 2" MESH GALV.
CHAINLINK FABRIC,
KNUCKLED

CROSS BRACE FRAME W/
3/8"Ø TRUSS ROD, TYP.

SELF-LOSING HINGES
WITH 5/8" BOLTS, TYP. OF 3

STRETCHER BAR

#6GA. GALV. WIRE TIED TO MESH
W/HOG RINGS AT 18" O.C. AND TIED TO
EA. POST W/TIE-WIRE. INSTALL #6 WIRE
BETWEEN POSTS AND FABRIC.

STRETCHER BAR BAND,
TYP.

BRACE BAND, SIZED
PER POST, TYP.

FINISH GRADE

EMBEDDED POST

AGGREGATE BASE

CONCRETE FOOTING

+/
- 8

'-0
" S

IN
G

LE
 E

N
TR

Y 
G

AT
E

A A

3"

REBAR CAGE
(4)#5 VERT W/

(5)#3 TIES @ 8"O.C.

REBAR CAGE

EMBEDDED POST

CONCRETE FOOTING

(4)#5 VERT. W/ #3 TIES @
8" O.C.

3" COVER, MIN.

SECTION 'A-A'

4" TERMINAL POST

6"

2X ROOTBALL
DIAMETER

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8
TREE STAKES: 2"Ø X 8'-0"
PRESSURE-TREATED LODGEPOLE
PINE, 2 PER 15 GAL.

RUBBER TREE TIES: 2 PER STAKE.
WRAP NO WIRE AROUND TRUNK OR
LIMB.

MULCH: 3" LAYER.

3" HIGH EARTH WATERING BERM IN
PLANTER AREA ONLY.

FINISH GRADE. KEEP ROOT CROWN 1"
ABOVE FINISH GRADE.

PLANT TABS, SEE SPECIFICATIONS.

PREPARED BACKFILL. SEE
SPECIFICATIONS.

EXISTING UNDISTURBED SOIL.

1

2

3

4

5

6

8

7 NOTES:

1. STAKES SHALL NOT PIERCE ROOTBALL AND
SHALL EXTEND INTO UNDISTURBED SOIL.

STAKING PLAN VIEW

NAIL
STAKE

TREE
TREE TIE

PREVAILING
WINDS

DIRECTION

2x ROOTBALL
DIAMETER

1

2

4

5

6

3

3" LAYER OF APPROVED MULCH.

2" HIGH EARTH MOUND.

FINISH GRADE: PLANT ROOT CROWN 1" ABOVE
FINISH GRADE.

FERTILIZER TABLETS, SEE SPECIFICATIONS.

PREPARED BACKFILL, SEE SPECIFICATIONS.

PLACE ROOTBALL ON SMALL MOUND OF
TAMPED/ FIRM TOPSOIL.

1

2

3

4

5

6

PER PLAN
1'

-0
"

2"

1'-0"

COMPACTED SUBGRADE

#4 REBAR, EA. WAY

4"
8"

POLYURETHANE CAULKING

1/2"
1/2" PRE-MOLDED FIBER
EXPANSION JOINT, TYP.

12
" C

U
R

B

#3 REBAR CONT.

#4 REBAR @ 24" O.C..

2% SLOPE

3/8" RAD. TYP.

EXISTING CONCRETE PAD NEW CONCRETE WALK

GRASS SLOPE

 NEW WALKWAY TO HAVE A
LIGHT BROOM FINISH

DEERHILL PARK
PICKLEBALL COURT

CONVERSION PROJECT

W.N.

J.S. --

L-4.2

C
O

N
ST

R
U

C
TI

O
N

 D
ET

AI
LS

TREE PLANTING RETAINING WALL

WALKWAY AND CURB

SHRUB PLANTING

TENNIS COURT FENCING, GATE, AND FOOTINGS

123

4

56

2

B

1 3 4 5 6

1 32 4 5 6

A

C

D

E

SHEET NUMBER

DATE: SHEET: OF:

PROJECT TITLE

DRAWN :

PROJECT NO. CHECKED: 

SCALE :

SHEET TITLE:

STAMPS/SEALS

D
EE

R
H

IL
L 

PA
R

K 
- P

IC
KL

EB
AL

L 
C

O
U

R
T 

C
O

N
VE

R
SI

O
N

 P
R

O
JE

C
T

DEERHILL PARK
PICKLEBALL COURT

CONVERSTION PROJECT

6700 DOUBLETREE RD.
OAK PARK, CA. 91377

REVISIONS:

03/26/2024 7 8CONCRETE STAIRS & HANDRAIL



7
X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X

B

TCTC

7

64.5
64.0
63.5

2.3%

63

9.75% 5.35%

2.0%2.0%2.0%

X
X

X

X

X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X

X

X
X

X
X

RETAINING WALL, L-4.2/1

1'-0"6"

7

3

10'-0" MAX
AT CORNER POST, TYP.

℄ ℄

FINISH GRADE

4" TERMINAL POST

GALV. TENSION BANDS, SIZED PER
POST, TYP.

CAST IRON POST CAP

1 12" MID RAIL

#6GA. GALV. WIRE TIED TO MESH
W/HOG RINGS AT 18" O.C. AND TIED TO
EA. POST W/TIE-WIRE. INSTALL #6 WIRE
BETWEEN POSTS AND FABRIC.

STRETCHER BAR BAND,
TYP.

BRACE BAND, SIZED
PER POST, TYP.

EMBEDDED POST

AGGREGATE BASE

CONCRETE FOOTINGHEAVY DUTY CAST STEEL
BUTTERFLY GATE LATCH.

9GA. X 2" MESH GALV.
CHAINLINK FABRIC,
KNUCKLED

CROSS BRACE FRAME W/
3/8"Ø TRUSS ROD, TYP.

H
EI

G
H

T 
VA

R
IE

S
12

'-0
" M

AX
.

6'
-6

"

H
EI

G
H

T 
VA

R
IE

S
6'

-0
" M

AX
.

℄

1 12" TOP RAIL

9GA. X 2" MESH GALV.
CHAINLINK FABRIC,

KNUCKLED

NEW EYE CAP, TYP.

1 1/2" CLEAR, TYP.

STRETCHER BAR

+/
- 8

'-0
" S

IN
G

LE
 E

N
TR

Y 
G

AT
E

RELOCATED MID RAIL ABOVE
NEW GATE

 NEW CROSS BRACE FRAME
W/ 3/8"Ø TRUSS ROD, TYP.

EXISTING FOOTING EXISTING FOOTING EXISTING FOOTING
2'-0"

NEW FOOTING

NEW 4"Ø STD. PIPE POST
1 12" TOP RAIL

A A

3"

EMBEDDED POST

CONCRETE FOOTING

(4) #5 VERT. W/ #3 TIES @
8" O.C.

3" COVER, MIN.

SECTION 'A-A' NOTES:

1. FENCE DRAWINGS ARE DIAGRAMMATICAL AND USED FOR REFERENCE IN CONSTRUCTING THE
FENCES AND GATES. CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR THE PURCHASE AND
CONSTRUCTION OF ALL FENCE MATERIALS, ACCESSORIES, AND RELATED ITEMS IN ORDER TO
PROVIDE A COMPLETE AND FUNCTIONAL INSTALLATION. MATERIALS SHALL MATCH EXISTING
(HOT-DIP GALV., UON).

2. ALL WIRE MESH FENCE FABRIC:
2.1. SHALL BE ON THE INSIDE OF THE POST EXCEPT AT TERMINAL POSTS.
2.2. TO BE KNUCKLED AT TOP AND BOTTOM RAILS.
2.3. TIE WIRES 1'-6" O.C., MAX. SPACING, TYP.

3. INSTALL FENCESCREEN MAXFlex PVC MESH - 300 SERIES PRIVACY WINDSCREEN FABRIC ON
INSIDE OF ALL FENCE PANELS AND GATES SURROUNDING THE ENTIRE COURT. COLOR SHALL
BE FOREST GREEN.

4. INSTALL FENCESCREEN SOUND BLOCK 850 SERIES, ACOUSTICAL DAMPENING MATERIAL ON
INSIDE OF ALL FENCE PANELS SURROUNDING THE ENTIRE COURT, GATES EXCLUDED.

5. NEW FENCE PANELS MAY REUSE SAVED/SALVAGED FABRIC FROM DEMOLISHED PANELS, AS
LONG AS THEY FIT CORRECTLY, AND ARE IN GOOD CONDITION; FREE FROM RIPS, TEARS, OR
ANY OTHER DAMAGE OR DEFECTS. OTHERWISE, THEY ARE TO BE REPLACED WITH NEW
WINDSCREEN FABRIC, MATCH EXISTING COLOR, WEAVE, AND STYLE, ETC.

6. GATE RESTRICTER PLATE, WELDED TO GATE TO ONLY OPEN INWARDS TOWARDS COURTS,
TYP.

PLANTING PLAN KEY
SYMBOL BOTANICAL NAME

Salvia gregii

Pyrus kawakamii

Cistus purpureus Orchid/Purple Flowered Rockrose

Autumn Sage/Red Sage

Evergreen Flowering/Japanese Pear

COMMON NAME SIZE QTY.

24" Box 4

185 Gal.

165 Gal.

10D.F.Erigeron karvinskianus Santa Barbara Daisy

Prunus cerasifera var. atropurpurea Purple-leaf Flowering Plum 24" Box 4

Phlomis fruticosa Jerusalem Sage 215 Gal.

DEERHILL PARK
PICKLEBALL COURT

CONVERSION PROJECT

W.N.

J.S. --

L-4.3

C
O

N
ST

R
U

C
TI

O
N

 D
ET

AI
LS

PLANTING PLAN

GATES ADDED TO EXISTING FENCING PANELS

1

2

43

2

B

1 3 4 5 6

1 32 4 5 6

A

C

D

E

SHEET NUMBER

DATE: SHEET: OF:

PROJECT TITLE

DRAWN :

PROJECT NO. CHECKED: 

SCALE :

SHEET TITLE:

STAMPS/SEALS

D
EE

R
H

IL
L 

PA
R

K 
- P

IC
KL

EB
AL

L 
C

O
U

R
T 

C
O

N
VE

R
SI

O
N

 P
R

O
JE

C
T

DEERHILL PARK
PICKLEBALL COURT

CONVERSTION PROJECT

6700 DOUBLETREE RD.
OAK PARK, CA. 91377

REVISIONS:

SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

PLANTING PLAN KEY

NOTES:

1. SANTA BARBAR DAISY SHALL BE PLANTED IN BARE AREAS BETWEEN
5GAL. SHRUBS. TRIANGULATE PLANTING AT 24" O.C..

03/26/2024 8 8USA PICKLEBALL COURT LAYOUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CB

AutoCAD SHX Text
CB



INTERCONNECTION

Construction is moving forward on the 
Calleguas-Las Virgenes Interconnection Project! 

Stay Connected

@CalleguasMWD
(800) 371-0723 info@calleguas.com

Thank you for your patience as we enhance water reliability for our region.

Projected Completion Date: End of 2024
For schedule updates, scan the QR Code or visit: CMWD-LVMWDInterconnection.com

Please note, construction is dependent on many variables, 
including, but not limited to weather conditions, and this 

information is subject to change.



Esri, NASA, NGA, USGS, FEMA, County of Los Angeles, California State Parks,
Esri, TomTom, Garmin, SafeGraph, GeoTechnologies, Inc, METI/NASA, USGS,

Bureau of Land Management, EPA, NPS, USDA, USFWS

Disclaimer: this map was created by the Ventura County Resource
Management Agency Information Systems GIS, which is designed
and operated solely for the convenience of the County and related
public agencies. The County does not warrant the accuracy of this
map and no decision involving a risk of economic loss or physical
injury should be made in reliance therein

0 3,000 6,0001,500 Feet

JM

Ventura County

Resource Management Agency

Information Systems GIS Services

Map created on 4/12/2024

County of Ventura

Oak Park Municipal
Advisory Council

Existing Oak Park MAC Boundary

Selected Election Precincts
Oak Park 2-001, Oak Park 2-002, Oak Park 2-003,
Oak Park 2-004, Oak Park 2-005, Oak Park, 2-006,
Oak Park 2-007, Oak Park 2-008 Oak Park 2-009,
Oak Park 2-010, Oak Park 2-011, Oak Park 2-012,
Oak Park 2-013, Oak Park 2-014, Oak Park 2-015,
Oak Park 2-016, Oak Park 2-017



 

Page 1 of 2 

 

RESOLUTION NO.  ______________ 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS  
OF THE COUNTY OF VENTURA REVISING THE FRAMEWORK AND 

ESTABLISHING POLICIES TO MORE EFFECTIVELY MANAGE  
THE OAK PARK MUNICIPAL ADVISORY COUNCIL  

 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the authority granted by Section 31010 of California Government 
Code, the Oak Park Municipal Advisory Council (“Council”) was established June 3, 1975, 
as amended by resolution dated February 7, 2012; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Council’s duties, scope, district, and elected member residence 
requirements are focused to a designated area that includes County of Ventura Election 
Registration Precincts: Oak Park 2-001, Oak Park 2-002, Oak Park 2-003, Oak Park 2-
004, Oak Park 2-005, Oak Park, 2-006, Oak Park 2-007, Oak Park 2-008 Oak Park 2-
009, Oak Park 2-010, Oak Park 2-011, Oak Park 2-012, Oak Park 2-013, Oak Park 2-
014, Oak Park 2-015, Oak Park 2-016, Oak Park 2-017; and   
 
WHEREAS, the Council was established in 1975 as the area was not and continues to 
not be an incorporated City. Even though Oak Park, at the time, had a homeowners’ 
association, the association’s paying membership only included 30-60% of the residents. 
When the association represented the community to public agencies, some questioned 
whether the group legitimately spoke for the entire community. Community leaders asked 
the Ventura County Board of Supervisors to establish a MAC for Oak Park to create a 
locally recognized voice for all residents; and 
 
WHEREAS, to better assist and define expectations of the Council in alignment with 
Section 31010, et seq., a County of Ventura Municipal Advisory Council Policy document 
has been established which is updated from time to time. The Council is expected to 
abide by these policies as established by the Board of Supervisors; and 
 
WHEREAS, by resolution of the Board of Supervisors in June 3, 1975, the Council 
conducted its first elections in November 4, 1975. Election requirements for this Council 
are hereby stipulated in the County of Ventura Municipal Advisory Council Policy 
document. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, ORDERED AND DETERMINED 
by the Board of Supervisors that: 

1. Repeal and Replacement of Prior Resolutions. All prior resolutions of the Board 
regarding the Oak Park Municipal Advisory Council are hereby repealed and 
replaced with this resolution. 

2. Continuation of Council. There is hereby continued a Municipal Advisory Council 
for the unincorporated are of the County, commonly known as the Oak Park 
area, as shown on the updated map attached hereto as Exhibit A. 



 

Page 2 of 2 

 

3. Name of the Council. The Municipal Advisory Council shall continue to be known 
as the Oak Park Municipal Advisory Council (“OPMAC”). 

4. Designated Powers and Duties. The OPMAC shall only have those powers and 
duties set forth in this resolution and as defined by the County of Ventura 
Municipal Advisory Council Policy document. 

5. Termination of the OPMAC. The Board of Supervisors may, at its sole discretion, 
terminate and dissolve the OPMAC. 

6. Effective Date. This resolution shall become effective upon adoption. 
 
 
/ / / 
/ / / 
 
 
 
On motion of Supervisor ______________, seconded by Supervisor _______________, 
the Board adopted this resolution on the 14th day of May 2024. 
 

___________________________ 
       Kelly Long 

Chair, Board of Supervisors 
       County of Ventura 
 
 
 
ATTEST:  
 
Dr. Sevet Johnson 
Clerk of the Board of Supervisors 
County of Ventura, State of California. 
 
 
By:        
 Deputy Clerk of the Board 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

  

  

  

 

County of Ventura 

Municipal Advisory Council (MAC) Policies 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Ventura County Municipal Advisory Council Policies      Page | 2 

Table of Contents 
 

Introduction ................................................................................................................................. 3 

Purpose of Municipal Advisory Councils........................................................................................ 3 

Applicability of this Municipal Advisory Council Policy Document .................................................. 3 

Board Member MAC Assignment .................................................................................................. 4 

Scope and Designated Powers & Duties ........................................................................................ 4 

MAC Member Appointments & Elections ....................................................................................... 4 

Appointed MAC Member Termination ............................................................................................ 6 

Management of Unscheduled Vacancies ...................................................................................... 7 

MAC Alternate Positions ............................................................................................................... 7 

Powers and Duties of MAC Officers ............................................................................................... 8 

MAC Meetings .............................................................................................................................. 8 

MAC Committees ....................................................................................................................... 13 

Procedure for Rules of Debate .................................................................................................... 14 

MAC Training Requirements ........................................................................................................ 16 

Administrative Support of MACs ................................................................................................. 16 

Advisement on County Service Areas and Other Taxation Districts ............................................... 17 

MAC Annual Reports, Including Work Plans ................................................................................. 18 

MAC Boundaries ........................................................................................................................ 18 

Termination of a MAC ................................................................................................................. 18 

 

  



 

Ventura County Municipal Advisory Council Policies      Page | 3 

Introduction 
In recognition of the need by unincorporated communities for increased influence with their county 
Boards of Supervisors (“BOS”), the State of California, under Government Code 31010, states the 
Board of Supervisors of any county may by resolution establish a Municipal Advisory Council (“MAC”) 
for any unincorporated area in the County to advise the Board on such matters that relate to their 
designated area. Such a council is an advisory body of local citizens with the purpose of representing 
the community to the Ventura County BOS. Although a MAC is a governing body, it has no fiscal or 
administrative authority. Because it lacks authority to implement its position directly, it seeks to 
accomplish its goals through County government. These councils focus on both actions taken by the 
BOS and actions and interests of the community. The councils hold public meetings, receive 
community input, survey community opinion, and speak for the community to the BOS on matters of 
public safety, planning, public health, public works, and matters of interest specific to the MAC 
designated area.  

This document seeks to establish a framework and policies to manage the County’s Municipal 
Advisory Councils more effectively. While some variances may appropriately reflect the inherent 
differences in the communities served, a framework for the operating rules and procedures of the 
MACs will ensure that the MACs are effectively serving their advisory purpose to the BOS and are 
successfully representing the concerns and recommendations of their respective communities. 

Purpose of Municipal Advisory Councils 
Ventura County’s Municipal Advisory Councils advise their representative County Supervisor on 
matters that pertain to the MAC’s designated unincorporated area. Municipal Advisory Councils do 
not establish government policy or objective. Rather, MACs provide valuable input and advisement 
from their community that can help their representative County Supervisor make policy decisions, 
provide necessary resources, or inform the BOS on potential opportunities, risks, or issues that 
affect their community. The MAC strives to govern and work together in an effective, efficient, 
ethical, and courteous manner in the highest tradition of public service and in the best interest of 
the County of Ventura and its residents. Where no other representative body is responsible for 
advisement on management of a taxation district’s budget (e.g. a County Service Area), the MAC 
shall fulfill this duty.  

Applicability of this Municipal Advisory Council Policy 
Document 
This document was created with the best intentions to assist the Ventura County Board of 
Supervisors and their respective Municipal Advisory Councils. As this document was created by 
one Supervisorial District’s office team and Brown Act restrictions exist, not all Board of 
Supervisors offices were consulted in this document’s formation. Accordingly, this policy 
document is able to be changed from time to time by majority vote of the Supervisors. Finally, this 



 

Ventura County Municipal Advisory Council Policies      Page | 4 

policy document shall only be applicable to a municipal advisory council if the resolution for the 
municipal advisory council explicitly establishes its adoption. 

These policies are deemed to be procedural only. Except as otherwise provided by law, the failure to 
strictly observe the application of these policies shall not affect the jurisdiction of the Council or 
invalidate any action taken at a meeting that is otherwise held in conformity with law.  

Board Member MAC Assignment 
From time to time, Municipal Advisory Council designated unincorporated areas may in whole or in 
part shift from being entirely in one supervisorial district’s boundaries or within the area of multiple 
districts. This generally occurs due to redistricting. In order to streamline MAC operations, one 
specific County Supervisor’s district office team will be considered responsible for management of 
and receiving advisement from each MAC. Should something of interest to the MAC reside in 
another Supervisorial District’s area, the responsible County Supervisor will communicate with the 
other County Supervisor to invite them to participate and/or communicate back the concerns of the 
MAC. 

Municipal Advisory Council Assigned County 
Supervisor District 

Casa Conejo 2 
El Rio/Del Norte 3 
Oak Park 2 
Oak View Advisory Commission 1 
Ojai Valley 1 
Santa Rosa Valley 2 
Saticoy 1 
Somis 2 

Scope and Designated Powers & Duties 
The scope, as defined in California Government Code 31010, indicates that Municipal Advisory 
Councils shall advise their County Supervisor on matters of public health, safety, welfare, public 
works, and planning. Items to be considered by the MAC are determined by the District Supervisor 
in whose district the Council is located. Some MAC members may also serve on subcommittees 
and provide input on various topics that the Supervisor has requested. Examples include 
committees that work on the MAC’s Annual Plan, Legislative Committees and Area Plans.  MACs 
have the authority to manage the review and approval of parking permits in areas where an 
oversized vehicle ordinance requires a MAC to do so. 

MAC Member Appointments & Elections 
Municipal Advisory Council Members are either appointed by the Board of Supervisors, based on 
the nomination from the County Supervisor or elected by voters within a MAC’s designated 
boundaries. Whether or not a MAC is an elected body, or an appointed body, is determined by BOS 



 

Ventura County Municipal Advisory Council Policies      Page | 5 

resolution. Unless otherwise specified, MAC Members, whether elected or appointed, shall serve 
four-year terms. Terms should be staggered to limit the number of scheduled vacancies at any one 
time. Municipal Advisory Councils shall be composed of five members selected and 
serving as provided herein. 

Appointed MAC Member Policies 

1. Should a member of the public wish to be considered for an appointed role on a 
municipal advisory council they must reside in their council’s designated area. A County 
of Ventura Application to Boards & Commissions must also be received. 

2. The managing County Supervisor for the MAC will receive all applications and conduct 
interviews as necessary. Upon selection of a candidate, the County Supervisor must 
submit a board letter to the Ventura County Board of Supervisors suggesting an 
appointment. 

3. An appointment term shall be four years. 
4. A Council member is required to review the Brown Act, complete training and abide by 

the Brown Act’s rules. 
5. A Council member is required to review the County’s Conflict of Interest code, complete 

training and abide by the requirements of the Conflict-of-Interest code. 
6. A Council member is required to abide by the rules set forth in the Ventura County 

Municipal Advisory Council Policies. 
7. MAC members shall serve without compensation of any kind, and the Board of 

Supervisors shall not provide funds for the payment of Council meeting stipends or 
reimbursement of Council members’ expenses. 

8. There shall be no automatic re-appointment or holdover of MAC members upon 
expiration of a member’s term.  

9. The County Supervisor may choose whether to re-nominate an incumbent member or 
nominate a new member. Any re-nomination or nomination must be approved by the 
Board of Supervisors.  

10. MAC member terms shall be coterminous to the term of office of the County Supervisor 
managing the MAC.  Appointments need to be made within 60 days of the beginning of 
the County Supervisor’s term.  

11. In the case of newly elected Supervisors, MAC members can carry over their positions 
for a period not to exceed 90 days, to allow time for the County Supervisor to recruit, 
interview, make position selections and nominations to the Board of Supervisors. 

Elected MAC Member Policies  
Qualification for and election to the Council and all proceedings incidental to and connected with 
the election shall be performed in accordance with the California Uniform District Election Law and 
California Elections Code except as specifically provided herein. 

1. The Council shall be composed of five members. All members shall be elected at 
large by registered voters residing within the Council area. 

2. All nominees for Council Member positions must be registered voters residing within 
the Council’s area. 

3. Elections shall be held on scheduled election days determined by the County Clerk & 



 

Ventura County Municipal Advisory Council Policies      Page | 6 

Recorder presiding over elections according to the following: 
a. The term of office for Council members shall be four years.  
b. Elections shall be held in November of even numbered years for as long as the 

Council exists. 
c. Elected MAC members shall take office upon the first MAC meeting following the 

election. 
d. In April of an election year, elected municipal advisory councils must consider and 

approve a  
4. A Council member is required to review the Brown Act, complete training and abide by 

the Brown Act’s rules. 
5. A Council member is required to review the County’s Conflict of Interest code, complete 

training and abide by the requirements of the Conflict-of-Interest code. 
6. A Council member is required to abide by the rules set forth in the Ventura County 

Municipal Advisory Council Policies. 
7. MAC members shall serve without compensation of any kind, and the Board of 

Supervisors shall not provide funds for the payment of Council meeting stipends or 
reimbursement of Council members’ expenses. 

Appointed MAC Member Termination 
Each appointed member of a MAC serves at the pleasure of the Board of Supervisors and may be 
removed, at will, by a majority vote of the Board. The rescission of an appointment by the Board is 
rare. However, policies should be in place in the event that a MAC member acts inappropriately 
toward other MAC members, staff, or the public; acts outside the authority of the MAC; or has 
persistent problems with attendance.  

Termination Policies  

1. Appointed MAC members may be removed from their appointments at will upon 
recommendation by the District Supervisor and a majority vote of the Board of 
Supervisors.  

2. MAC members should express their concerns about any inappropriate behavior by a 
member to their District Supervisor.  

a. If an issue arises, a District Supervisor may meet with or send a letter to the 
MAC member and the MAC Chair, advising the member of the concern and 
indicating that a failure to correct the inappropriate behavior may lead to 
removal.  

3. The MAC member should receive written notice of a recommendation for removal, the 
date and time of the meeting at which the Board will consider the matter, and of the 
opportunity for public comment to the Board before action on the matter.  

4. If a MAC member or alternate has been absent from two consecutive meetings, the 
secretary or administrative support staff should advise the member or alternate that 
absence from three consecutive regular meetings of the MAC may result in a 
recommendation of termination to the Board of Supervisors. 



 

Ventura County Municipal Advisory Council Policies      Page | 7 

5. Where it appears that there will be sufficient members to hold a meeting but, at the 
actual time of the meeting a quorum cannot be reached and the meeting is canceled, 
those members or alternates who are absent will have an absence counted against 
them. 

Management of Unscheduled Vacancies 
A Council position shall become vacant on the occurrence of the events specified in Government 
Code section 1770. This section may be amended from time to time.  

In the event there is a vacancy on the council, the Board of Supervisors shall fill such a vacancy by 
appointment.  The following is a partial list of events triggering Government Code 1770 that apply: 

1. Death of an incumbent. 
2. An adjudication pursuant to a quo warranto proceeding declaring that the incumbent is 

physically or mentally incapacitated due to disease, illness, or accident, and there is 
reasonable cause that the incumbent will not be able to perform the duties of his or her 
office for the remainder of their term. 

3. His or her resignation.  
4. His or her removal from office.  
5. His or her ceasing to be a resident of the designated area.  
6. His or her ceasing to discharge the duties of his or her office for a period of three 

consecutive months, except when prevented by sickness, or absent from the state with 
permission required by law.  

7. His or her conviction of a felony or of any offense involving a violation of his or her 
official duties.  

8. The decision of a competent tribunal declaring void his or her election or appointment. 

MAC Alternate Positions 
For appointed Municipal Advisory Councils, appointed alternate positions may be established. 
Alternates can serve a useful purpose by assisting with the achievement of a quorum. However, a 
policy of automatic appointment of the alternate in the event of a vacancy may discourage other 
interested individuals from applying for appointment. Moreover, appointments should not be made 
automatically, in respect of District Supervisor responsibility for member nominations. Accordingly, 
the following policy has been set forth: 

1. Alternate positions do not automatically assume a member position when a vacancy 
arises. Alternates, however, may be nominated to fill a member vacancy to the Board of 
Supervisors by the District Supervisor. 

2. The establishment of an alternate position (or positions) in the case of a five member 
MAC is at the discretion of the District Supervisor.  



 

Ventura County Municipal Advisory Council Policies      Page | 8 

Powers and Duties of MAC Officers 
Each year, at the first calendar meeting of the MAC, officers of the MAC are appointed by motion 
and formal vote for each officer position. 

Chair (selected by MAC) 

The Chair shall serve as presiding officer of the MAC, shall rule on questions of procedure, shall 
sign official documents approved by the MAC, shall preserve order and decorum and shall decide 
all questions of order.  Decisions of the Chair may be overruled by a majority vote of the Board. The 
Chair, in their capacity, can only act on behalf of items formally voted on and agreed to by the MAC 
and approved by the County Supervisor. 

Vice Chair (selected by MAC) 

The Vice Chair shall have and exercise all the powers of the Chair at the meeting over which he or 
she is called on to preside.  In the event of nonappearance by the Chair at any regular or special 
meeting, the Vice Chair shall call the MAC meeting to order and shall serve as presiding officer. 

Chair Pro Tempore  

If neither the Chair nor the Vice Chair is present at a meeting, the Council members present shall, 
by a motion and vote select one of their members to act as the Chair Pro Tempore. The Chair Pro 
Tempore shall have and exercise all the powers and duties of the Chair for that particular meeting 
only. 

Secretary 

A recording secretary is responsible for documenting the motions, votes, comments, and other 
official actions of the MAC. The secretary shall take meeting minutes during the MAC meeting and 
e-mail a draft copy of the minutes to the assigned staff member from the County Supervisor’s office 
at the end of the MAC meeting. The County Supervisor’s office will include the draft minutes in the 
next meeting’s agenda packet for formal MAC approval of the minutes. 

MAC Meetings  
The frequency and length of meetings increase the cost and requirements of administrative support 
for the MACs. The annual meeting calendar will be developed and posted annually by the 
Supervisor’s office. Any scheduled meeting may be canceled upon order of the Chair or a majority 
of the members of the MAC. 

Regular Meetings 

1. Municipal Advisory Councils shall hold regular meetings at least quarterly at an 
established time and place. 

2. MACs shall establish a standard meeting schedule for the year and meet no less than 
quarterly. 



 

Ventura County Municipal Advisory Council Policies      Page | 9 

3. MAC meetings should be held at a time and place convenient and accessible to MAC 
members, the community, and administrative support staff.  

4. MAC meetings should not exceed three (3) hours in length. 
5. MAC meetings shall be fully compliant with the Brown Act. 
6. The MACs shall agendize and respond to items that are referred to them in a timely 

manner (e.g. within 30 days of referral) such that their review does not delay the County 
Board of Supervisors’ consideration of the matter.  

7. The agenda should reflect, and the MAC Chair should remind the public at the start of 
each meeting that the MAC is an advisory body to their representative County 
Supervisor. 

8. Should a MAC member be unable to attend a meeting, all reasonable effort shall be 
made to notify the Chair and the designated County Supervisor’s office in writing as 
soon as possible. 

9. Three members of the MAC shall constitute a quorum sufficient to transact business. A 
valid action must reflect the consent of at least three members present (Government 
Code section 25005). 

 Special Meetings 

1. Special Meetings to discuss a specific topic(s) may be called.  No other business shall 
be considered at the meeting.  Rules for posting are outlined in the Brown act. 

Order of Business 

The order of business at each regular session, except for such times as may be set apart for 
consideration of special items, shall be as follows: 

1. Meeting Called to Order  
The presiding officer shall initiate the proceedings by gaveling the meeting to order. The officer shall 
indicate that “This is a meeting of the <Insert Name of MAC> Municipal Advisory Council. Municipal 
Advisory Councils provide advisement to our representative County Supervisor on such matters 
that relate to their designated area.” 

2. Roll Call  

The Chair, at the commencement of a meeting of the Council, shall call the roll and the Secretary 
shall record by name all members present or absent. If the Chair has been notified prior to the 
meeting that a member will be absent, the Secretary shall record in the minutes that the absence of 
said member is by prearrangement (excused). Should a quorum of three members of the Council 
not be met, the meeting must be adjourned to the next scheduled meeting of the MAC. 

3. Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag of the United States of America 

The Chair shall designate a member of the Council, or other official, to lead the meeting in reciting 
the Pledge. 

4. Minutes 



 

Ventura County Municipal Advisory Council Policies      Page | 10 

The minutes of previous meetings of the County and dependent special districts governed by the 
MAC shall be considered to the end that any corrections, alterations, or additions may be made by 
the MAC. 

5. Agenda Review  

The presiding officer will review any agenda amendments and/or revisions, and requests for items 
to be continued or removed from the Consent agenda. The MAC will consider and approve, by 
majority vote, such revisions to MAC agenda items and any item added to, or removed/continued 
from, the Council agenda. 

6. Consent Agenda Items 

Consent agenda items are routine in nature and do not require individual consideration. All consent 
items are approved by a single vote as recommended without discussion unless an item is pulled 
and considered during the Regular agenda for separate action at the request of a MAC member, 
staff member, or a member of the public. 

7. Public Comment 

The rules relating to oral presentations by members of the public are as follows: 

Addressing the MAC 

1. Prior to the meeting, or during the meeting prior to the time the agenda item to be 
addressed begins, a person wishing to address the MAC should fill out a speaker card and 
submit it to the Chair. 

2. When called upon, the person should come to the podium, state his or her name and city of 
residence for the record, and, if speaking for an organization or other group, identify the 
organization or group represented. The Secretary shall enter in the minutes the names of 
the individual(s) speaking. 

3. All remarks should be addressed to the MAC as a whole, not to individual members thereof. 
Each person speaking from the floor shall obtain permission from the Chair. 

4. Questions, if any, should be addressed to the Chair of the MAC who will determine whether, 
or in what manner, an answer will be provided.  

5. Speaker time shall be limited to 3 minutes to be supervised by the Chair. 
6. Public Comment is that period of time set aside at MAC meetings for members of the public 

to address the MAC on items not listed on the agenda or on matters that are listed under the 
Consent Agenda. If the matter is listed on the Consent Agenda, the item will be moved to 
the Regular Agenda for consideration following the approval of the remainder of the 
Consent Agenda, at which time the speaker will be heard, or the speaker will be allowed his 
or her time before the MAC’s consideration of the Consent agenda. 

7. Public Comment shall be limited to no more than 30 minutes total for all speakers, with 
each speaker given no more than three minutes. If there are more than six speakers, the 
Chair may reduce the time each speaker is allowed to (3) three minutes or any other  period 
less than five minutes. At the discretion of the Chair, the time allotment for speakers may be 
adjusted above or below five minutes relative to the number of speakers present. Persons 



 

Ventura County Municipal Advisory Council Policies      Page | 11 

wishing to speak under Public Comment should submit a speaker card prior to the 
commencement of the item.  

8. Presentations under Public Comment are limited to items within the subject matter 
jurisdiction of the County or dependent special districts and are limited to no more than five 
minutes.  

9. The Public Comment portion of the MAC meetings shall be deemed to constitute the 
opportunity for members of the public to address the MAC in compliance with Government 
Code section 54954.3.  

10. Members of the public making oral presentations to the MAC in connection with one or 
more agenda or non-agenda items at a single meeting are limited to a cumulative total of 
five minutes for all of their oral presentations at such meeting unless otherwise provided. 

11. Speakers shall not present the same or substantially the same items or argument to  the 
MAC repeatedly or be repetitious, dilatory, or profane in presenting their oral comments. If a 
matter has been presented orally before the MAC, whether the MAC has taken action, or 
determined to take no action, the same or substantially same matter may not be presented 
orally by the same person any further. Nothing in the foregoing precludes submission of 
comments to the MAC in writing for such action or non-action as the MAC, in its discretion, 
may deem appropriate.  

a. Miscellaneous  
i. When called upon, the person should come to the podium, state his or her 

name and city of residence for the record, and, if speaking for an 
organization or other group, identify the organization or group represented. 
The Secretary shall enter in the minutes the names of the individual(s) 
speaking. All remarks should be addressed to the MAC as a whole, not to 
individual members thereof. Each person speaking from the floor shall 
obtain permission from the Chair.  

ii. In order to expedite matters and to avoid repetitious presentations, 
whenever any group of persons wishes to address the MAC on the same 
subject matter, the Chair may request that a spokesperson be chosen by the 
group and, in case additional matters are to be presented by any other 
member of the group, limit the number of such persons addressing the MAC. 
A specific time limit may also be set for the total presentation.  

12. Any of the foregoing rules may be waived by the presiding officer or by a majority vote of the 
Council members present when it is deemed that there is good cause to do so based upon 
the particular facts and circumstances involved. 

Comments in Writing Encouraged  

13. Members of the public may submit, and are encouraged to submit, comments in writing to 
the MAC relating to any items in the MAC’s scope and designated area, whether on the MAC 
agenda or otherwise. When written materials are provided to the MAC during a meeting, 10 
copies are required to be submitted. Such written comments will be distributed to 
members of the MAC and considered and acted upon, or not acted upon, as the MAC in its 
judgment may deem appropriate.  



 

Ventura County Municipal Advisory Council Policies      Page | 12 

8. Comments by Representative of the County Supervisor or the County Supervisor 
Responsible for the MAC  

This is the time for the County Supervisor or their designee to provide feedback or updates 
pertinent to the MAC’s scope and area or feedback and updates as it pertains to the County. 

9. Comments by Council Members 

Comments by Council members on matters they deem appropriate within the MAC’s scope 
and area. A MAC member may ask a question for clarification, make a brief announcement, 
or make a brief report on his or her own activities. A MAC member may also provide a 
reference to staff or other resources for factual information or request staff to report back to 
the body at a subsequent meeting concerning any matter. The MAC may also direct staff to 
place a matter of business on a future agenda. 

10. Regular Agenda Items  

 Items not included in the Consent agenda or items that are not time certain are taken up for 
 consideration as part of the Regular agenda. They will be heard at the MAC’s discretion, 
 either before or after scheduled appointments and hearings. 

11. Adjournment 

The last item of the agenda shall always be an adjournment item indicating the date, time 
and location for the next scheduled meeting. (Government Code section 54955) 

Official Actions in a Meeting 

1. Motions 
a. Action of the Council shall be taken by motion. Any action of the Council may be proposed 

by the motion of any Council member. Such a motion, if seconded by a member, shall be on 
the floor and must be considered. If a motion is not seconded, the motion fails for lack of a 
second, shall be so declared by the Chair, and shall not be further considered.  

b. A motion may be withdrawn by its maker at any time before adoption or rejection, with the 
consent of the second. Absent the consent of the second, the motion shall remain on the 
floor. The second to a motion may be withdrawn by the second at any time before adoption 
or rejection of the motion. Upon withdrawal of the second, the motion will be lost for lack of 
a second and so declared by the Chair unless seconded by another member.  

c. When a question or “original motion” is under debate, no motion shall be received unless: 
i. To adjourn  

ii. To lay on the table  
iii. To consider the previous question  
iv. To continue to a certain date  
v. To amend  

vi. To remove These motions shall have preference in the above order. 
d. A motion on the floor may be amended by motion at any time before adoption or rejection. If 

the motion to amend fails, the original motion will be voted upon. If the motion to amend 
passes, the amendment is adopted and, thereafter, the original motion, as amended, will 



 

Ventura County Municipal Advisory Council Policies      Page | 13 

be voted upon. After a motion has been seconded, any member may discuss the subject of 
the motion. When no member wishes to discuss the motion further, the Chair shall call for 
the vote on the motion. At any time after a motion has been seconded, any member who 
has the floor may call for a question. The Chair may call for the vote if it appears that further 
discussion will be repetitious or that a majority of the Members present concur in the call.  

e. A motion to consider the previous question shall preclude all amendment from debate to 
the main question and shall be put in the form “shall the main question be put to a vote.”  

f. A member called to order shall relinquish the floor unless permitted to explain, and the 
MAC, if appealed to, shall decide on the case, but without debate. If there is no appeal, the 
decision of the Chair shall be final.  

g. A Motion to Reconsider Made at the Same Meeting – Upon motion by a MAC member who 
voted with the prevailing side of the matter previously considered, and seconded by any 
MAC member, the MAC may, by majority vote of the entire MAC (at least three votes in 
favor), reconsider any matter dealt with previously by the MAC at the same meeting. The 
motion may be made either during the same session or at any recessed or adjourned 
session of that same meeting.  

h. A Motion to Reconsider Made at a Subsequent Meeting – Upon request of and a motion by a 
MAC member who voted with the prevailing side of the matter previously considered, and 
seconded by any MAC member, the MAC may, by majority vote of the entire MAC (at least 
three votes in favor), reconsider any matter dealt with previously by the Board at a previous 
meeting of the MAC. All such requests for reconsideration that appear on the agenda shall 
contain both the recommendation to reconsider and a recommendation on the matter 
previously considered, and are subject to standard agenda requirements. All decisions 
made after consideration at a public hearing shall be reconsidered only at a public hearing, 
which is noticed in the same manner as the original hearing.  
 

2. Votes 
a. Voting shall be roll call. Each roll call vote shall be made in an order determined by the Chair 

but shall first include the maker of the motion and the member who seconded the motion, 
followed by the balance of the members present, with the Chair called last, unless the 
Chair made, or seconded, the motion. 

MAC Committees 
MACs may establish committees (or subcommittees) to address subject areas considered by the 
MAC. It is important that committees and sub-committees adhere to the Brown Act, and County’s 
policies and ordinances. Unless these policies and procedures are followed, the MAC, the public 
and the Board of Supervisors may not be well served by the committees. 

1. MACs may establish a single-purpose committee (or subcommittee) when needed. The 
committee (or subcommittee) shall be composed of less than a quorum of the MAC and 
chaired by one of its members. Members of the public who are not MAC members may 
serve on a committee or subcommittee to allow broad-based input from the 
community.  



 

Ventura County Municipal Advisory Council Policies      Page | 14 

2. A specific charge or outline of responsibilities shall be established for the committee (or 
subcommittee) by the MAC. 

3. The committee (or subcommittee) shall operate in accordance with MAC operating 
procedures, the Brown Act, the County’s Conflict of Interest Code, and the County’s 
Municipal Advisory Council policies.  

4. Meeting agendas for committees (or subcommittees) shall be posted and records of 
action should be maintained and posted as well. 

5. A report out on the status of the committee (or subcommittee) is to be provided in the 
regular agenda of the municipal advisory council complete with copies of any agendas, 
minutes or other materials created since the last municipal advisory council meeting. 
 

Procedure for Rules of Debate 

During a MAC meeting, it is possible that differences in opinion or views may occur. Accordingly, 
irrespective of debate, MAC members shall follow the following procedures. 

Recognition to Speak 

Every Council member desiring to speak shall first address the Chair and be recognized by such. 
The member shall solely discuss the question under debate, avoiding personalities and indecorous 
language. 

Questions to Staff 

Every Council member desiring to question County staff, after recognition by the Chair, shall 
address the questions to the Supervisor’s representative who shall be entitled either to answer or 
designate a member of staff for that purpose. 

Interruption 

A Council Member, once recognized, shall not be interrupted when speaking unless called to order 
by the Chair or a point of order or personal privilege is raised by another Council Member. If a 
Council Member, while speaking, is called to order, the member shall cease speaking until the 
question of order is determined. Members of the Supervisor’s staff, after recognition by the Chair, 
shall hold the floor until the completion of their remarks or until recognition is withdrawn by the 
presiding officer.  

Points of Order  

The Chair shall determine all "points of order" subject to the right of any Council Member to appeal 
the Chair's decision to the Council. If an appeal is taken, the question shall be, " Shall the decision 
of the Chair be sustained?" A majority vote of those Council Members present shall conclusively 
determine such question of order.  

Point of Personal Privilege 

The right of a Council Member to address the Council on a question of personal privilege shall be 
limited to cases in which the member's integrity, character or motives are questioned. A Council 



 

Ventura County Municipal Advisory Council Policies      Page | 15 

Member raising a point of personal privilege may interrupt another Council Member who has the 
floor only if the Chair recognizes the privilege.  

Privilege of Closing the Debate.  

The Council Member moving the item shall have the privilege of making the closing remarks during 
debate. 

Limitation of Debate. 

To encourage the full participation of all members of the Council, no Council member(s) shall be 
permitted to monopolize the discussion of the question. If a Council Member has already spoken 
and other Council Members wish to speak, the latter Council Member(s) should be recognized in 
preference to the Council Member who has already spoken. However, if no other Council Members 
seek recognition, the Chair may recognize the Council Member who has already spoken. 

Rules and Guidelines of Decorum 
In order to maintain a public meeting environment conducive to receiving public testimony from all 
sides of any issue, it shall be policy that the audience will be discouraged from engaging in audible 
displays of support of or opposition to testimony provided. Behaviors such as clapping, booing, 
hissing, and cheering can create an intimidating environment for people interested in giving public 
testimony and consequently these behaviors are to be discouraged. 

To minimize distractions during public meetings, all personal communication devices will be turned 
off or put in a non-audible mode during meetings. 

Chair and MAC Members 

While the Council is in session, the members shall preserve order and decorum, and a member 
shall neither, by conversation or otherwise, delay or interrupt the proceedings nor disturb any 
member while speaking nor refuse to obey the orders of the presiding officer. 

Persons Addressing the MAC 

Any person making impertinent or slanderous remarks or who becomes disruptive while addressing 
the Council, shall be called to order by the Chair and, if such conduct continues, may, at the 
discretion of the Chair, be ordered barred from the premises during that meeting.  

Members of the Audience 

Any person in the audience who engages in disorderly conduct, such as hand clapping, stamping of 
feet, whistling, using profane language, yelling and similar demonstrations, which conduct disturbs 
the peace and good order of the meeting, or who refuses to comply with the lawful orders of the 
Chair shall be removed from the premises. 

Disruption Management 

1. Chair should quickly bang the gavel loudly 2- 3 times. 



 

Ventura County Municipal Advisory Council Policies      Page | 16 

2. Chair should state: "Outbursts or disruptions will not be tolerated. Please cease and 
desist. If this behavior continues, this meeting will be recessed until decorum is 
observed." 

3. If disruption continues, Chair shall state: " We have a member(s) of the public who are 
being disruptive, therefore I will call a recess until decorum is observed."  

4. MAC members shall exit the premises  
5. Once decorum is observed, MAC members can return 
6. If behavior continues after calling a recess, the individual(s) may be removed by law 

enforcement. 
7. If disruption continues, order the meeting room cleared and continue in session. 

Representatives of the press or other news media, except those participating in the 
disturbance, shall be allowed to attend any session held pursuant to this section. f) 
Persons authorized to be within the City Council/ staff dais area.  

MAC Training Requirements 

MAC members should be trained in meeting operating procedures, the Brown Act, and County 
policies. Training provides MAC members with resources and knowledge to operate efficiently and 
effectively.  

Policies Regarding Training Requirements 

1. MAC members must attend a training offered by the County Counsel staff at least once 
during the first two years of his/her term, preferably in the first year, and must view the 
video training “The Brown Act and Better Government Act—What You Need to Know” 
within 60 days of their appointment by the Board of Supervisors.  

2. MAC members are encouraged to attend the annual advisory body training and should 
receive an orientation on MAC member duties and responsibilities by District and/or 
County staff before their first meeting. 

3. Within three months of appointment, each MAC member shall complete the prescribed 
training on compliance with conflict of interest, Form 700 and shall certify that he or she 
has completed such training. Training certificates and compliance shall be maintained 
by the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors. 

Administrative Support of MACs 
To ensure effectiveness, all MACs need some level of administrative support services provided by 
the responsible supervisorial district staff.  

Supervisorial District Staff Shall: 

1. Identify and manage the securing and setup of a location for a Municipal Advisory 
Council meeting. 

2. Annually develop a draft calendar for the municipal advisory council. 



 

Ventura County Municipal Advisory Council Policies      Page | 17 

3. Develop an optional draft agenda that is shared with the public no fewer than three days 
prior to the finalization of the agenda to allow time for community preparation and 
participation. 

4. Develop agenda packages complete with the draft minutes created by the MAC-
appointed Secretary and any other materials planned to be presented. 

5. In adherence to the Brown Act, posting the agenda at the location of the meeting no 
later than 72 hours prior to the meeting. 

6. Post the agenda on the corresponding municipal advisory council website 
7. E-mail the agenda package to the e-mail list for the municipal advisory council. 
8. Maintain the municipal advisory council website 
9. Prepare responses to inquiries made during public comment 
10. Prepare responses to requests from MAC members  

Advisement on County Service Areas and Other Taxation 
Districts 
The designated area of Municipal Advisory Councils may coincide with funding districts such as 
County Service Areas. A MAC may review and provide advisory recommendations concerning the 
financing and operation of such areas. Where a separate board or entity exists to manage a taxation 
district, the MAC shall provide deference to that entity for all official advisement matters. 
 

MAC External Communications and Representations 
 
In accordance to California Government Code 31010, Municipal Advisory Councils, where 
optionally established, advise the Board of Supervisors on such matters that relate to their 
designated area. In Ventura County, MACs advise their representative County Supervisor on items 
of import. Accordingly, it is understood that the Board of Supervisors is the final decision making 
authority with respect to issues concerning the community and that the Council shall serve solely 
in an advisory capacity.  

Policies Regarding External Communication and Representations 

1. Except as authorized by the MAC via an agenda item voted upon and authorized by the majority 
of the MAC or the Ventura County Municipal Advisory Council Policies, the MAC and its 
individual members acting on behalf of the MAC, may not represent the community to any 
federal, state, other county, city, special district or school district, agency or commission, or 
any other organization on any matter concerning the community.  

2. Should a MAC member wish to opine on any matter that has not been expressly authorized by 
the MAC or the Ventura County Municipal Advisory Council Policies, they must indicate that 
while they are a member of the MAC, their opinion does not reflect the official opinion of the 
MAC or the County of Ventura. 

3. The MAC may not, as a body, take positions on candidates for any public office. 



 

Ventura County Municipal Advisory Council Policies      Page | 18 

4. Should business cards, letterhead, or printed material from the MAC be created, the MAC 
should be identified as an advisory body to their representative Supervisor, and the contact 
information for the District Supervisor should be included.  

MAC Annual Reports, Including Work Plans 
Each Municipal Advisory Council shall create an annual report regarding MAC activities, 
accomplishments, membership attendance, records of required training, and a proposed Work 
Plan or objectives for the following year.  

1. Before the last MAC meeting of the calendar year, the Municipal Advisory Council shall review 
and provide feedback on a draft of their annual report and work plan for the following year 
created by the Chair and Vice Chair. 

2. At the last MAC meeting of the calendar year, the Municipal Advisory Council shall finalize their 
annual report and work plan for submission to the representative County Supervisor. 

3. Failure to submit an annual report and work plan may result in consideration of MAC 
dissolution. 

MAC Boundaries 

Municipal Advisory Council boundaries are required to be within the unincorporated area of 
Ventura County and within the commonly accepted known area that could have impact on the 
designated area of the MAC. The designated area will be defined by an official map that 
accompanies the Board of Supervisors Resolution of the MAC. The resolution of the MAC shall 
explicitly define the precincts and/or specific parcel numbers for the designated area of the MAC. 

When an unincorporated community of interest is adjacent to industrial areas or facilities (e.g., 
refineries, power plants, gas fields), these areas should be included if there are known or 
anticipated matters of public health, safety, welfare, public works, and/or planning. When an 
unincorporated community of interest is adjacent to government-owned lands (e.g., airports, 
special district lands, transitional military bases, etc.), these areas should be included only if there 
are known or anticipated matters of public health, safety, welfare, public works, and/or planning. 

From time to time, MAC boundaries may be updated by review and advisement approval by the 
Municipal Advisory Council and consideration and approval by the Board of Supervisors. 

Should a MAC’s boundaries incorporate more than one Supervisorial District, please refer to the 
Board Member MAC Assignment section of the Ventura County Municipal Advisory Council 
Policies. 

Termination of a MAC 
The Board of Supervisors may, at the sole discretion, terminate and dissolve a Municipal Advisory 
Council after giving 30 days written notice.  

 


	f7bc7c1e-7b28-48a9-9a90-2107cfeb2ee8.pdf
	Slide 1
	Slide 2
	Slide 3
	Slide 4
	Slide 5
	Slide 6
	Slide 7
	Slide 8
	Slide 9
	Slide 10
	Slide 11
	Slide 12
	Slide 13
	Slide 14

	4cc3f4ca-fc0a-4fa4-94c8-41941818db8e.pdf
	Insert from: "23-006 Deerhill Park - Pickleball Courts - 100% CD (VC).pdf"
	Sheets and Views
	23-006 Deerhill Park - Pickleball Courts - L-0.1 Front Sheet-Layout1
	23-006 Deerhill Park - Pickleball Courts - L-1.1 Site Plan-Layout1
	23-006 Deerhill Park - Pickleball Courts - L-2.1 Demolition Plan-Layout1
	23-006 Deerhill Park - Pickleball Courts - L-3.1 Construction Plan-Layout1
	23-006 Deerhill Park - Pickleball Courts - L-3.2 Surfacing & Dimension Plan-Layout1
	23-006 Deerhill Park - Pickleball Courts - L-5.1 Details-L4.1
	23-006 Deerhill Park - Pickleball Courts - L-5.1 Details-L-4.2
	23-006 Deerhill Park - Pickleball Courts - L-5.1 Details-L-4.3



	14d3656c-bc93-4f39-9d8e-59514e3ecbcb.pdf
	Oak Park MAC Map 1
	Oak Park MAC Map 2
	Casa Conejo MAC Map 3
	Casa Conejo MAC Map 4
	Somis MAC Map 5
	Somis MAC Map 6
	Santa Rosa MAC Map 7
	Santa Rosa MAC Map 8


